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Min utes: 

C hairman Nathe: opened the hearing on HB 1471. 

Rep. Looysen: District in (2:00-2:29) introduced HB 1471. He proposed an amendment 
to HB 1471 on Page 3 line 4 Subsection 4 of Section 2. This section should read it "does 
not" if we could add "not". (See Attachment #1 page 1 ) . 
Rep. Rohr: What is the process that exists now for the stuent journalists at the University 
of Jamestown? 

Rep. Looysen: The current process is the head of the college or the advisor would have 
the ultimate say on what gets published. There can be some controversial issues. 

Rep. Rohr: So the advisor has the authority on what gets published? 

Rep. Looysen: That is my understanding and they can go above the advisor if the school 
board or someone else didn't like it. The University System does have some sort of rule 
that deals with this, but that is only a rule at state sponsored colleges. 

C hairman Nathe: Is there some problem right now with some of the students with some 
of your views or stories being censored? 

Rep. Looysen: Nationwide there are several incidences in a handout that a speaker 
coming up will address. I do know of one or two. 
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C hairman Nathe: Is any of this happening in North Dakota? 

Rep. Looysen: I know of one individual that lost his job and had to get it back and there is 
local people affected by this also. 

Rep. Mock: District 42. In support of HB 1471. (5:35- 8:15) I want to express my heart 
felt appreciation for those testifying in favor of the bill. The one thing I want to point out is 
you notice it is called the John Wall New Voices Act. Explained how the name came to 
be. 

Steve Listopad: Assistant Professor of Journalism at Valley State University: (8:28-
16:27). (See Attachment # 1, Page 2-4). 

Rep. Meier: In the bill on Page 4 line 12 in the bill how would you interpret that section? 

Steve Listopad: I would interpret that I f the students work was restricted or censured took 
place outside of the Tinker standard, that meaning there was evidence then a lawsuit could 
take place. There have been zero successful against lawsuits against high schools in all 
these years under both Tinker or Hazelwood. All Hazelwood is doing is destroying 
journalism education. It is not saving anyone a dime. 

Rep. Meier: Are you talking zero successful lawsuits are you talking about the whole 
United States? 

Steve Listopad: Yes. 

Rep. Olson: What is the Hazelwood situation could you explain this? 

Steve Listopad : Hazelwood for example is a student walking down the hallway and 
wears a t-shirt with words or an American flag on it, they follow the Tinker standard. There 
has to be disruption for a teacher to have that student remove that t-shirt. As soon as the 
activity becomes curricular Hazelwood applies. You don't need disruption, all you need 
is a dislike, the teacher has control. The state is in charge. Let me make that clear. 
There is an imbalance. The student walking down the hallway has more freedom than 
student journalists. We can't teach in an authoritarian setting. We can't teach them to own 
their words if they don't own their words. Hazel wood strips them and undercuts the 1st 

amendment out from the students who need that to learn and practice and engage in what 
they are doing. Civic engagement isn't a light switch. As educators we need to start early 
and nuture their ideas and help form them into great members of our society. 

Rep. Rohr: Would you say the number of students that enter that career path have 
decreased because of this? 

Steve Listopad: I don't know that but the number of newsrooms have decreased. This is 
about the students are going to have important conversations in dark corners where there 
will be no input from us. This will give them a safe space in schools where those 
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conversations can happen in a friendly environment where important public debate can 
take place. 

Frank D.  LoMonte: Executive Director of Student Press Law Center, Washington DC: In 
support of HB 1471. The question of free speech always come down to this question, 
where do we draw the line? (24:00-34:56). (See Attachment # 1, page 5-6). 

Rep. Rohr: The one thing you hear a lot today is professional ethics. Do you see that as 
adversarial to what we are doing today or is that something that needs to be addressed as 
well? 

Frank LoMonte: When you ask about professional ethics, that hour in the journalism 
room, it is about the only time you can have a detailed discussion about the fact I can do 
this but should I? We know students need exposure to ethical decision making. 

Chairman Nathe: How did we get to that point where the students are hesitant to 
retribution? 

Frank LoMonte: There has always been a power or intimidation factor there. Hazelwood 
standard in 1988 really has accelerated that including the fact that it has put teachers in 
the spot of making sure nothing passes their threshold that puts the school in an 
unflattering light even if it is truthful. 

Chairman Nathe: The teachers become a gatekeeper for the school? 

Frank LoMonte: It puts the teachers in a terrible quandry. 

Rep. Zubke: I notice in this bill we do allow the religious organizations to draw the line if it 
is not consistent with their religious beliefs and I always worry about the window we are 
opening and how far we are moving that line? I will just pick for example vulgarity, if the 
college is paying for this paper how far over that line are we going concerning vulgarity? 

Frank LoMonte: That is what we want to address There is always a fail-safe where the 
school can stop the language if it has vulgarity or racist that could be stopped especially if 
they feel uncomfortable coming to school or cause violence. 

Rep. Zubke: You mention uncomfortable that seems pretty broad. There are a lot of 
things that make me uncomfortable that might be different for someone else. 

Frank LoMonte: When I mention uncomfortable the sponsors of the bill have incorporated 
Title 9 standard. If it is the kind of speech that is a harassing manner that is the kind of 
speech that could be stopped. 

Rep. Olson: The bill states the section does not authorize to protect expression by a 
student that so incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the commission 
of an unlawful act. That is a bright line there as to how far the speech can go. But on page 
3 subsection 6 of Section 2 line 7. It says "does not prohibit and institution from adopting 
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rules and policies that are designed to prevent hate violence from being directed at 
students in a manner that denies students full participation in the educational process". 
When I read that section it reminds me of pre-crime where if the school decides ahead of 
time they decide a certain type of speech because it might possibly cause people to be 
uncomfortable or insight a certain level of disruption. What are we trying to do here? 

Frank LoMonte: There is some degree of uncertainty in every 1st amendment standard 
and when we talk about the Title 9 harassment and the Tinker standard there is always 
judgment calls needing to be made. The reason we incorporate their language is that 
rather than fashioning new terms that a court would have to interpret on a blank slate by 
using the same language you would bring along the precedent that tells us where that line 
is of the clear and present danger. They will not second guess a decision made by an 
administrator in an emergency situations where violence would be set off. The subset of 
language addressing matters of school where there is the public image control that 
concerns me. This is the subset of language that is not protected today. 

Rep. Meier: Is this legislation part of an effort for all the United States to pass a law like 
this? 

Frank LoMonte: A lot of states came up with statutes of this kind in alarm to what the 
Supreme Court had done. There is not an actual push to have a national campaign. 
You would be in a position of national leadership if this law was enacted. 

Rep. Meier: Have any states passed legislation like this? 

Frank LoMonte: 7 states have enacted statutes. 3 other states have rules. This 
expedites the resolutions of disputes because the student, the teacher and the principal 
can all sit down at the table and use this list to go over to see if there are reasons to stop 
the speech. 

Rep. Meier: Those 7 states have rules not laws, correct? 

Frank LoMonte: Those 7 states have statutes like this and 3 have rules. 

Rep. Rohr: Is there any basis to for using privacy and confidentiality laws to hinder 
freedom of speech at the high school or collegiate level? 

Frank LoMonte: The U. S. Department of Education which is the entity that enforces 
federal privacy law, has said they have a process by which they can interpret issues about 
FERPA. They have issued from the department speech by the student is not speech by 
the department. 

Mary Beth Tin ker: Participant of " Tinker v Des Moines Independent Community School 
District", (51 :51-60: In support of HB 1471. (See Attachment #1 page 7-8). 

Rep. Olson: I share you concern for civic discourse. If we are seeking to prepare 
students for journalism in the real world they would be held to a different standard by where 
they are hired. If they were employed by CNN, in that type of environment they would not 
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be able to publish what the wish. It is privately owned. How would this mirror if they could 
say anything they want. 

Mary Beth Tin ker: Students will not be able to say what they wanted to say under the 
John Wall New Voices Act there are very many limitations still as well as under the Tinker 
standard. The bill has limitations and there will be editorial review and editorial policy 
being made. There is a difference between public school and CNN. Schools are owned by 
the public and are not privately owned companies. 

Steve Andrist: Executive Director, North Dakota Newspaper Association: (1 :04:27-
1 :06:02). In support to HB 1471. (See Attachment #1 page 9). 

Jeremy Murphy: West Fargo Public Schools Publication Advisor: In support of HB 1471. 
(1:06:35- 1:08:54). (See Attachment #1 pages 10-11). 

Rep. Rohr: One of the frustrations I have with journalism today is you don't see a lot of 
debate or differing viewpoints in journalism today can you speak to that? Are they 
encouraged to speak to all viewpoints? 

Jeremy Murphy: We do encourage our students to address both sides of the issue. In 
some environments there are persuasive strategies used to only speak to a single focus. 

Chairman Nathe: How do you deal with bias? 

Jeremy Murphy: We talk about objectivity every day. It is about developing those skills. 
We create a collaborative environment and we have that dialogue. 

Chairman Nathe: Will this cause a bias in one way or another in the schools? 

Jeremy Murphy: Currently, I have not seen that in our environment and I have seen other 
schools and advisors that they are worried about public image or school image. 

Rep. Olson: It sound like some schools have made wise use of their powers. What you 
are asking from this bill, is a distribution of power away from administration and given to the 
students? Is there anything presently that would be improved by this bill in your situation? 

Jeremy Murphy: No. The environment we have is very forward thinking and thinking 
about creating productive people. I don't see it affecting West Fargo but talking with 
advisors around the state this would help them. 

Rep. Schreiber Beck: How do you look at other schools or advisors how can this bill 
assure that those advisors have the same skills you possess and would continue that 
communication? We are seeing those that make it work, but there perhaps there is some 
that don't have your skills, yet we are going to give them the same opportunities. Could you 
comment please? 

Jeremy Murphy: We provide professional development for STEM educators and it can be 
the same for Journalism. There are a lot of great resources that could guide teachers 
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Providing those opportunities and offering those resources. 

Rep. Olson: In the law it state that it would not authorize or protect expression that 
incites clear and present danger or the commission of unlawful acts. Another part says it 
does not prohibit the institution from adopting rules and policies that are designed to 
prevent bad things from happening. It retains authority with the institution to basically 
decide they could create these policies. Is that something you are comfortable with in 
this language or do you see any problems with that? 

Jeremy Murphy: I don't personally have an issue with that. Students are young adults 
and they come up with great ideas many times. They can surprise you and come to a 
decision that is ethically sound. 

Rep. Kelsh : If you think something is controversial do you take it to a higher official? 

Jeremy Murphy:  It has channels and goes through student editors then I check it and I 
would let my administrators know if there is anything that seems unethical. 

Emily C hadwick: Student of Journalism at West Fargo Public School (1 :18:00-1 :20:06) In 
support to HB 1471. (See Attachment #1 page 12). 

Logan Ahern: Student of Journalism at West Fargo Public School( 1 :20:00- 1 :22:50) In 
support of HB 1471. (See Attachment #1, Page 13). 

Rep. Olson: Your newspaper is a self -funded newspaper that gives you freedoms you 
would not have. Would this bill give you any freedom you don't have currently? 

Logan Ahern: I don't know. 

Susan Skalicky: Bismarck Schools Journalism Educator: (1 :23:52-1:28:11) In support of 
HB 1471. (See Attachment #1 page 14-15). 

Rep. Rohr: Considering unbiased presentations, just as important as the student being 
taught those skills, it is as important to have the advisor who is advising in an unbiased 
fashion. What checks and balances are in place for that? 

Susan Skalicky: We are all human and we are all biased so because of that as an 
advisor I daily go through the process of asking myself why am I thinking what I am thinking 
and to also to pass that on to my students . We have a lot of meetings about ethical 
decisions. 

Rep. Olson: Why do students at Century presently enjoy the freedoms you describe? 

Susan Skalicky:  It is because we inherited the program from great advisors previously. 
Century has had an awesome journalism program since 1976. I don't keep things from my 
principal. We maintain a trusting relationship. The students 
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Kacey Peterson: Bismarck Public Schools Journalism Student: In Support of HB 1471. 
(1 :32:00- 1 :35:26) (See Attachment #1 page 16). 

Carrie Sandstrom: University of North Dakota Journalism Student: (1 :36:00- In support 
of HB 1471. (See Attachment #1 page 17-18). 

Chairman Nathe: Did you ever have conversations with school authorities and did you 
have any pressure from above because they were worried about the schools image? 

Carrie Sandstrom: Yes we had some instances. Gave example of an instance when 
serving at UNO as editor of the student newspaper about pressure about not to run a story 
that may have impacted the Universities image. (1 :43:00- 1 :45:21 ). 

Chairman Nathe: Was there any retribution for the story being run? 

Carrie Sandstrom: No one was fired. We did have to justify our actions. (1 :46:00- 1 :47:38) 
Example of a story that upset alumni and administration. I am ok to justify our actions but 
there is fear there. There is fear because we are students and our whole point of being 
there is to graduate. We are afraid we could have out diploma held from us if you would 
anger the administration writing stories about what they are doing. The chance that there 
would be some academic retribution is much scarier for college journalists than the fact 
that we could lose our jobs. 

Rep. Olson: It sounds like you had quite a bit of leeway. If this law would pass what 
additional authority or changes do you think would come about you don't already have? 

Carrie Sandstrom: This bill makes all the difference for college journalists. We don't have 
much to point to for help. It is my word and my hope that the administration will see my 
side. Students need guarantees so that they can justify their actions, and do their jobs 
with confidence. It is hard enough for students to make decisions. Our structure right now 
is up in the air without strong student outlets and newspapers students. You don't know 
how to be a journalist until you have been one. Start with strong student newspapers and 
strong students outlets so they have a say to make strong future journalists. This bill 
makes all the difference. 

Other Testimony in  support of HB 1471 in absentia.(1 :53:00). (See Attachment #1 
pages 19-25.) 

Rep. 8. Koppelman: As I understand the bill Sections 1 and 2 deals with Higher 
Eductional Institutions and Section 3 primarily deals with K-12 institutions. In Section 3 
you used the time, place and manner concept of limitations of policy that school districts 
may have and in Higher Education it seems to be a broader limit on the institution from 
having a time, place and manner policy. That seems to be a different standard. Is that 
intentional? I am comparing that to page 4 line 17-19. 

Carrie Sandstrom: I will defer that question to someone else. 
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Frank LoMonte: Yes. It is intentional. Page 4 is about public K-12 schools or 
government run institutions and page 3 is about private institutions which therefore not be 
governed by the 1st amendment standard about time, place and manner at all. There was 
an effort to not impose on them a requirement that doesn't already exist today . 

Rep. B. Koppe l man: If then Section 2 relates simply to private institutions. Then it would 
suggest Section 1 is the Section that deals with the public University. If that is true is it 
intentionally lacking an ability to have a policy to have a time, place and manner in it. 

Frank LoMonte: The page 4 language which is something I have seen in other statutes 
like this in other states is really a more of a glass half full than a glass half empty. It is 
implicit that a public institution could do that already today, have a time ,place and manner 
policy. In fact they will. This was to make certain that K-12 schools include in their 
publication policy that there is an opportunity to actually distribute the publication. An 
additional safe guard which was thought to be necessary fo K-12 and not necessary for 
college level. 

Rep. Zubke: This bill seems refer to the freedom of speech. When I do research on the 
Tinker Standard and they identify some rights that schools have to restrict some free 
speech. Is there a conflict here? Would this bill supercede the Tinker and Fraser 
Standard? 

Frank LoMonte: There are two categories of speech in school. The speech such as the 
t-shirt or baseball cap outside of the curricular setting. That speech today is governed by 
Tinker, Fraser, and the and the Morse case where it addresses pro drug speech. Then 
there is the Hazelwood standard of free speech which is the curricular speech, the school 
newspaper being the classic example of that. Nothing in the bill changes the Tinker 
standard what it touches is the curricular speech and brings that into line with the Tinker 
Standard. 

Rep. Rohr: What if we added line 5 from page 4 to page 2 under the public universities 
and made that a line 5 as well for the higher education. It would be page 2 Section 1 
Subsection 5. 

Frank LoMonte: I don't see why that would do any harm on college campuses. I have 
not comprehensively researched your Higher Education Code though. 

Rep. Olson: There is a principal in constitutional law that is called the government 
speech doctrine. If this law passes would that that type of denial by the faculty to let 
someone post a private thought on a bulletin board in the school be taken out of their 
hands and give this to an open forum system? 

Frank LoMonte: Government speech doctrine exists as a creature of Supreme Court 
Case law as it regards to the speech of government employees. There is a classic 
Supreme court case which coined the idea when you are on the governments dime your 
speech is not your own you are under the government . But in cases like the teachers 
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want to use the bulletin board for personal speech they are under the government and 
cannot. The student is really a customer of the state and is not the same of employee 
speech. 

Rep. Hunskor: How does this work in a school where the schools that do not have 
expertise in supervising students? I can see superintendents being fearful of this not 
having proper supervision. 

FranK LoMonte: What I have heard from superintendents is they would like to stop 
speech of the nature where people are picking on students that they will be fearful of 
coming back and attending school. That is unprotected speech today and it will be 
unprotected speech tomorrow. We don't want people libeling each other or racial hate 
speech. The slice of the speak that is of concern to the folks in this room would become 
protected is that speech where a student is simply addressing a matter of public concern 
that the administrator for whatever reason believes is controversial or reflects critically on 
the school. 

Aimee Copas: Executive Director at NDCEL. (2:07:40- In general support of HB 1471. 
With some suggestions to amend the bill in Section # 3 pertaining to the K-12 schools. In all 
methods of public expression newspaper media news TV, there are generally publishers of 
the content. That publisher helps identify the content that is considered appropriate for that 
entity. For example CNN we used earlier. Why are K-12 students held to a different 
standard in school under current law. This is because public schools are to protect 
students. The potential language to add to Section 3 Subsection 5 is to reflect more closely 
is" the school and the school officials responsibility to outline reasonable time place and 
manner restrictions on speech". This is an important addition. This generally means you 
can regulate but not eliminate protected speech. Amendment proposed by Rep. Mock: 
(See Attachment #2). 

Chairman Nathe: You have it added to line 19 on subsection 5. 

Aimee Copas: Yes. We feel this additional piece helps define the parameters for the 
public schools to create that policy and protection. 

Vice Chairman Schatz: So you are not in favor of the bill as it stands? 

Aimee Copas: We are generally in support of the bill with the amendment. 

Rep. Olson: Do you know if hate speech is defined anywhere in North Dakota Century 
Code? 

Ai mee Copas: I am not sure. 

Rep. Kelsh: If there wasn't that extra piece in that school they probably wouldn't have a 
newspaper, is that an accurate statement? There is no way you can stop a student from 
putting a letter to the editor or statement to any newspaper that would print it? Are there 
any schools that don't have journalism program that don't have the expertise of guiding 
students in journalism that would have a newspaper? 
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Aimee Copas : I am not sure if there is specificity with regard to a paper that exists without 
the professionalism in place. It's not that the teachers in those positions are not 
professional they just don't have the time as though it was a full time teaching assignment. 

Rep. Hunskor: Journalism advisors for students don't have the expertise in many of the 
schools to probably oversee the way it should be done? 

Aimee Copas: Those positions could be offered to people even with a general level of 
interest. That t heightens the level of really good school policy. 

Chairman Nathe: Any other support to HB 1471? Seeing none. Any Opposition to HB 
1471? 

C h ristopher T. Dodson: Executive Director of North Dakota Catholic Conference: 
(2:12:20- 2:16:00). In opposition to HB 1471. And suggested amendments attached. (See 
Attachment #3). 

C hairman Nathe: Any other opposition to HB 1471? Seeing none. Closed the hearing 
on HB 1471. 
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II Attachment# 1-4. 

Minutes: 

C h ai rm an Nathe: reopened the hearing on HB 1471. We have two amendments in front 
of us. I want to bring up the amendment that Representative Looysen brought to us to add 
the word "not " to page 3 line 4 after the word does. 

Rep. Koppelman: Motion to add the word "not " to page 3 l i ne 4 after d oes on HB 
1 471 . 

Rep. Looysen: seconded. 

Voice Vote taken. Motion carried. 

Rep. Mock: This amendment is the follow up with Dr. Aimee Copas testimony regarding 
Section 3 of HB 1471. {See Attachment # 1). {1 :11-2:07) I move to add this 
a mendment on page 4 l ine 1 9  to HB 1 471 . 

Rep. Kelsh: seconded. 

Vice C h a i rman S chatz: I would like to amend the amendment by getting rid of the word 
"lewd". This can be a problem word, I talked to a lawyer that thought it could cause a 
problem. 

Rep. Koppelman : I would move to also remove the words " hate speech". 

Vice Chairm an Schatz: I withdraw my amendment then. 

II 
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Rep. B. Koppel man: I wi l l  move to amend the amendment to remove the word" 
lewd , and or defined as hate speech." 

Rep. Meier: seconded . 

Rep. B. Koppelman: In terms of hate speech I don't think we should define that in code 
and it is clear by saying what is profane, harassing, threatening and intimidating. I don't 
think we need the term hate speech in the amendment. 

C hairman Nathe: The clerk will take the roll on the amendment to the amendment to HB 
1471. 

A Rol l  Cal l  Vote was taken. Yes: 12 No: 1 Absent: 0. Motion Carried. 

C hairman Nathe: We have the amendment to the amendment. Any discussion on the 
amendment? 

Rep. Olson: It seems all of those acts are protected in other parts of the code, we could 
amend all that language out. I feel I would resist the amendment in general. 

Rep. Mock: If I am reading the bill correctly that language would be more permissive, 
because the way that section is that each school district would adopt a written student 
freedom of expression policy . Are you concerned and I don't necessarily disagree with 
you? I know the Council of Educational Leaders recommended this as an additional 
language. I don't think it is needed. Do you feel this is way too far? 

Rep. Olson: I think it goes against the intention of the bill itself, without speaking to the 
bill itself. 

C hairman Nathe: Any other discussion? Clerk will take the roll on the amended 
amendment to HB 1471. 

A Rol l  Cal l  Vote was taken. Yes: 7 No: 6 Absent: 0. Motion carried. 

C hairman Nathe: The Catholic Conference proposed amendment removes language in 
Section 2. I know one of the Private colleges would like to see that, and I know another that 
can live with it and would support us taking it out also. (See Attachment #2) 

Rep. Mock: The proposed amendment in Section 2 it removes lines 1-3 on page 3. Is that 
correct? (See Attachment #2) 

Rep. Hunskor: That is the request of the private schools. Within that arena they have 
different issues to deal with than in public schools. I would support their amendment. 

Rep. Rohr: Moved amendment from Catholic Conferences to HB 1417. 

Rep. B. Koppelman: seconded. 
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Rep. Zu bke: Has someone spent some time on Section 4 on the religious and belief 
based organizations. Will you explain that? 

Chairman Nathe: Christopher Dodson, would you come up and explain your 
amendment? 

C hristopher Dodson: North Dakota Catholic Conferences. Section 4 of the amendments 
is from another issue that has come up and is called an "all comers policy" which if you are 
going to be an official student organization you need to accept all members including for 
leadership even members that disagree with your organizations purpose. This was upheld 
by the U.S. Supreme Court a few years ago in a 5-4 decision. What it means for example 
Muslim organization would have to allow an atheist to become president or a Catholic 
organization would have to let an anti-Catholic to be president and it has lead to some 
schools having to not exist or move off campus as an official organization. If you want to 
address that issue since it deals with student rights. I contacted people that follow student 
organization rights and this is the language they recommended for clarification. If you don't 
want to address that issue you could take that part out of my amendment and you can deal 
with the other part. When I ran this by University of Mary and Student Organizations the 
issue was brought to my attention. 

Rep. Zubke: My question is does this directly pertains to this bill or not? Is this 
amendment does not directly pertain to this bill that we are considering? 

C h a i rman Nathe: Section 4 would be a new addition to the bill. I think it would be best if 
we withdraw the motion and remove section 4 and approve the upper half of the 
amendment. 

Rep. Roh r: Withd rew the motion. 

Rep. B.  Koppelman: withdrew second. 

Rep. B. Koppelman: I move we adopt the Catholic Conference amendment but 
remove the new Section 4 to HB 1471. 

Rep. Roh r: seconded. 

Chairman Nathe: (See Attachment #2) but remove Section 4 after line 19. Any questions 
on this amendment? 

Voice vote taken: Motion carried. 

Rep. Roh r: I have an amendment to HB 1471. I spoke with the bill sponsor and he was 
ok with it. It basically it would just include the same provision for public universities or 
institutions. (See Attachment #3). So on line 5. Instead of "school district" it would say 
"institution". 

Rep. Roh r: Moved amendment to HB 1471. 
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Vice C hairman Schatz: seconded. 

Rep. Zu bke: We did add some language to page 4, did you include that in this 
amendment? 

C hairman Nathe: No. Counsel will add that into the other amendment. So instead of 
school districts is will say institution Rep. Rohr? 

Rep. Rohr: Correct. 

Voice vote taken: Al l  ayes. Motion carried . 

Rep. Meier: (21: 15) I handed out an Iowa Student Expression Law. On page 2 Subsection 
3 we could take that section out and amend this language into that section. I think it is easy 
to understand and very good. (See Attachment #4). 

Chairman Nathe: The reason to take out 2 and putting this in is? 

Rep. Meier: Subsection 3. The reason is it is a little easier to understand and gives the 
school district a little more oversight over this piece of legislation. It protected the school 
districts more and has a little more detail with what we are trying to do. 

Rep. Koppelman: One of the main differences is using the term of obscene, adding that 
into this section. The rest of the sections we talk about libelous and slanderous we have 
that in the language already. Where we talk about violates the law, it is already here and 
insights the students, that portion is similar to the language to cause the material and 
substantial disruption. Then with number 4 that is the section that we have been amending 
a few things. Then on the last part of our bill on page 4 which is where Representative 
Rohr just amended it into a different spot, is there something specific in this we are not 
touching on? 

Rep. Meier: That is what I wanted to bring up to the committee for discussion. I wanted 
you to look at this Iowa law and see if we wanted to add something additional to this piece 
of legislation, to make it more detailed. We could certainly look at materials which are 
obscene and I think that would be the only thing. 

Rep. Olson: With regards to what Rep. Meier is proposing here, I believe most of this 
is handled under the current language on page 2 Subsection 3 and on page 4 Subsection 
3. Except for "there shall be no prior restraint of material prepared for official school 
publications except when the material violates this section. That would probably be good 
enabling language to guarantee exactly what this bill is seeking to do. This language 
might be helpful to add. What do you think Rep. Looysen? 

Rep. Looysen: I think it already lays it out and I would rather not add that. It is the 
committees wish though. 

Vice C hairman Schatz: This protects the official media of the school does it protect 
biogs? 
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Rep. Looysen: I believe this is official and biogs would be personal thing. You would be 
under the Tinker standard. Then Hazelwood would not apply to you. 

Rep. Meier: Moved to add the language l ine 3 of Iowa law "there shall  be no prior 
restraint of material prepared for official school publications except when the 
material violates this section" to page 2 subsection 3. 

Chairman Nathe: Our intern Tell can help to make sure it is added to the right section if 
this passes. Is that a motion Rep. Meier? 

Rep. Meier: It is a motion to adopt the amendment to HB 1471. Also to amend in to 
page 4 subsection 3. 

Rep. Rohr: Seconded. 

Rep. Olson: I am in favor of adding this language I think it makes the bill stronger. As I 
it stands if we don't remove lines 7-11 on page 3. Then the language we are adding here 
would be in conflict within the bill itself. This may direct hate violence toward students. 
The institutions then are going to be able to create prior restraint for language that doesn't 
specifically violate the sections that are already listed in Subsections 3 or Section 3 and 
Section 1. 

Chairman Nathe: Let's take up the amendment by Representative Meier first and then 
we can do an amendment on that. 

Rep. Mock: Just for the proper form I think Representative Meier language would need to 
be a new subsection. Can we defer to legislative counsel to insert that language to make 
sure it is in correct form and inserted in the correct sections. 

Chairman Nathe: Yes. And our intern Tell will be doing that. 

Voice Vote Taken .  Al l  Ayes. Motion Carried. 

Rep. Olson: I move we amend HB 1471 on page 3 by deleting l i nes 7-1 1 .  

Rep. Meier: Seconded. 

Rep. Olson: I think these lines establish a doctrine of prior restraint on rather shaky 
grounds. I don't think you can define the possibility of hate violence when it comes to 
measuring if a person's speech would encourage it. I think that the unlawful acts provisions 
are covered in Subsection 3 of Sections 3 and Section 1. It says it does not protect 
expression that would violate federal or state law, that would incite clear or present danger. 
I think we have that clear and it would be good to get rid of this ambiguous language. 

Chairman Nathe: Any other discussion on the motion? Just so the committee knows with 
the amendments we have made on page 3 Lines 1-3 and 7-11 are amended out so the 
only language left in if this amendment passes is lines 4,5 and 6 and "not" in line 4. 
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Rep. Kelsh: I can see if we put " there shall be no prior restraint" in that it would be in 
conflict with what we are doing. 

Rep. Mock: I was checking we have amended section 1 and 3 regarding the prior restraint. 
Section 2 is in a different section of century code but they both relate to postsecondary, 
Section 2 relates to requirement s and standards whereas Section 1 of the bill is in the 
State Board of Higher Education. I don't see a reason to resist the amendment. As I read 
the language that we want to remove it does not prohibit an institution from adopting rules 
or policies. Have we adequately addressed their ability to create said rules? 

Rep. Olson: This language simply says we do not prohibit so the question is have we 
taken away all authority in Section 2 from the institution to be able to adopt any rules? The 
ability in sub section 5 states it does not prohibit the imposition of discipline. So they do 
retain that power to administer discipline for any acts that involve threats or intimidation. I 
don't see that it prohibits after action review of student activity; We could add Subsection 3 
or Section 1 to say that this Section does not authorize or protect expression by a student 
that is A, B, C or D. That may be sufficient to establish the authority of the institution or 
just to retain it specifically. 

Rep. Mock: The part beginning on lines 9, 10 and 11 does relate a little bit to the due 
process in establishing the standards that need to be met. I just want to make sure that 
there is no unintended consequences in us removing that language. 

Rep. Kelsh: I think on page 2 lines 23 and 24 it at least implies that a postsecondary 
institution may not make or enforce any rules subjecting any student, it implies that they 
may make rules, it doesn't say they can't make rules. They just couldn't make rules 
subjecting a student to disciplinary sanctions solely on the basis of conduct of speech or 
other communication. 

Rep. Koppelman: I think we are ok as well. There other just inherit ways to make rules. 

C hairman Nathe: Any other discussion on this amendment? 

Rep. Olson: Could we hold this tomorrow to further research. 

Chairman Nathe: I would like to move on this. We can double check this. If we think 
there is a problem we can bring our concern to the Senate. Any other discussion? Seeing 
none. 

Voice vote on the amendment. All ayes. Motion passes. 

Rep. Koppelman: I would like to remove the lines 19 page one striking out " school 
sponsored " and doing the same thing on page 3 line 27 striking out " school sponsored". 
Because they are defining "student journalist which means a student of an institution, this 
means all the students under the supervision of the State Board of Higher Education. Who 
gathers, compiles, writes, edits, photographs, records, or prepares information for 
dissemination in school sponsored media " is how it reads now. What if a person was 
doing an independent newspaper but met all those other requirements. This bill is kind of a 
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bill of rights of sorts for the journalists. If we are narrowing it down by definition to school 
sponsored then it is suggesting if they had an independent paper would not necessarily 
have the same rights. Some people could say it is just implied because it is not school run 
that they have freedom of speech. But I do think if they were running something that 
looked similar and did the similar function of the school sponsored media but wasn't school 
sponsored the school could try to stop that effort. So I would like to remove those. 

C hairman Nathe: But if it is not under the supervision of the school why wouldn't they be 
able to do it? 

Rep. Koppel man: What we see on college campuses is many things if they are done at 
a private residence off of campus that are done differently than things that are governed by 
the campus rules. There is a suggestion that there is a stricter set of rules on campus for 
the student than for the same type of person operating off campus. I don't want to see the 
definition be used to suggest that they didn't enjoy the same privileges. 

Rep. Koppe l man: I miss spoke earlier it should be line 24 on page 3 in instead of line 27. I 
wanted to address the student journalist. So I move to amend HB 1471 on l ine 19 page 
1 to strike out "school sponsored " and on page 3 l ine 24 to strike out "school 
sponsored". 

Rep. Rohr: Seconded 

Rep. Kelsh: We asked the question if the school pays for the newspaper or does 
someone else pay for it. Who else pays for the newspaper if it is in the school and does 
this affect that or is this for something else? 

Rep. Koppel man: School sponsored is defined on line 24 page 1 where it says "school 
sponsored media regardless the media is supported financially by the institution or by use 
of facilities of the institution". So school sponsored is like a school sanctioned type of 
comment, not necessarily saying they actually give them the money. 

Rep. Mock: I agree with what you are trying to accomplish but I have to resist your motion 
because school sponsored media is a very carefully defined term that is repeated 
throughout this bill. Page I line 9 and page 3 line 16 defines school sponsored media, and 
by removing the words "school sponsored" from the definition of school journalists you no 
longer fit the context of school sponsored. I think we need to look at the definition of what 
school sponsored is. I don't think your amendment is actually going to accomplish that 
goal. I think it will create more complication in the context of the bill. 

Rep. Koppel man: I would be open to have a motion for an alternative here. I wanted to 
point out any student that is a journalist. Not necessarily a student journalist, that the 
school doesn't have any ability to sanction them in any way. When they would otherwise 
enjoy freedom off campus. 

Rep. Schrei ber Beck: Once you remove" school sponsored" there is no reason to have a 
student. You are a student in a school correct? Maybe we can change this someplace 
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else because this is not limiting anyone to write anything they wish that is published 
elsewhere. 

Rep. Looysen: So we heard from a student journalist at UNO and at the Grand Forks 
Herald. Are you suggesting they could censor the Grand Forks Herald for her writing 
against UNO because she is a student? If you have your own private blog or school 
newspaper they can't legally censor you. They might be able to sue you if you are saying 
complete lies. If you are under proper journalism I don't see how they can sue you or 
withhold your diploma. They might be able to threaten it but I don't think legally they can 
do it. 

Rep. Koppelman: I think of some of the things that institutions are able to do when you 
are staying at the dorm where someone put a message on your car, but the school just 
doesn't think it is appropriate. That is an example of institution control. Some suggest 
the language should say "an institution may not sanction a student who operates as an 
independent journalist while on campus". That might be a way to do it and not strike the 
words school sponsored, if that is more of what we would like to see I will withdraw the 
motion on the table and make a different one. I withdraw the motion.  

Rep. Rohr: I withdraw my second . 

Rep. Koppelman: I make a motion to insert on line 15 of page 1 after the word produced 
and on page 3 line 21 after the word produced insert the language "an institution may not 
sanction a student who operates as an independent journalist ." 

Rep. Rohr: Seconded. 

Rep. Olson: This might not be in the right place to insert this. 

Rep. Koppel man: I would defer to counsel in both Section 1 and Section 3 if they need to 
reposition it in the wording of the bill. 

Voice vote. Al l  ayes. Motion carried. 

Rep. Looysen: Moved a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1471. 

Rep. Mock: seconded . 

A Rol l  Cal l  Vote was taken .  Yes: 11 No: 2 Absent: 0. Motion carried. 

Representative Rep. Meier: wil l  carry the bi l l .  



Proposed by Rep. Mock 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 4, line 19, after the underscored period insert "The policy may also include limitations to language 

that could be defined as lewd, profane, harassing, threatening, intimidating, or defined as hate speech." 

Renumber accordingly. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 2, line 23, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 4, line 4, replace "~" with ".3..." 

Page 4, line 5, replace ".5... with "~" 

Page 4, line 7, replace ".6:." with ".5..." 

Page 4, after line 19, insert: 

"Section 4. A new section to chapter 15-1 O of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Religious and Belief-based organizations. 
An institution under the supervision of the state board of higher education may 
not discriminate against a religious or belief-based student organization with 
respect to a benefit available to any other student organization, based on that 
organization's requirement that its leaders or voting members aclhere to the 
organization's viewpoints or sincerely held beliefs or be committed to furthering 
the organization's beliefs or religious missions." 

Renumber accordingly 



Proposed by Rep. Rohr 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 2, after line 19, insert: 

"5. Each school district shall adopt a written student freedom of expression policy in 

accordance with this section. The policy must include reasonable provisions for the 

time, place, and manner of student expression." 

Renumber accordingly. 
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Adopted by the Education Committee 

February 18, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 2, line 15, remove "A student enrolled in an institution under the supervision of the state 
board of higher" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 19 with "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint of 
any school-sponsored media except when the media: 

a. Is libelous or slanderous: 

b. Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy; 

c. Violates federal or state law; or 

.Q,_ So incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the 
commission of an unlawful act. the violation of institution or state 
board of higher education policies. or the material and substantial 
disruption of the orderly operation of the institution. 

5. An institution may not sanction a student operating as an independent 
journalist. 

6. Each institution shall adopt a written student freedom of expression policy 
in accordance with this section. The policy must include reasonable 
provisions for the time, place, and manner of student expression." 

Page 2, line 23, remove "a postsecondary educational" 

Page 2, line 24, replace "institution" with "an institution under the supervision of the state board 
of higher education" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "a postsecondary institution" with "an institution under the supervision 
of the state board of higher education" 

Page 3, line 1, remove "This section does not apply to any postsecondary educational 
institution that is" 

Page 3, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 3, line 4, remove "4." 

Page 3, line 4, after "does" insert "not" 

Page 3, line 5, replace "5." with "4." 

Page 3, remove lines 7 through 11 

Page 4, line 12, remove "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 
guardian may" 

Page 4, replace lines 13 through 16 with "A school may not authorize any prior restraint of any 
school-sponsored media except when the media: 

a. Is libelous or slanderous; 

Page No. 1 15.0825.01001 



b. Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy; 

c. Violates federal or state law: or 

d. So incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the 
commission of an unlawful act. the violation of institution or state 
board of higher education policies. or the material and substantial 
disruption of the orderly operation of the institution." 

Page 4, line 17, after "5." insert "A school may not sanction a student operating as an 
independent journalist. 

6." 

Page 4, line 19, after the underscored period insert "The policy may also include limitations to 
language that may be defined as profane, harassing, threatening, or intimidating." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 15.0825.01001 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 18, 2015 3:07pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_32_008 
Carrier: Meier 

Insert LC: 15.0825.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1471: Education Committee (Rep. Nathe, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1471 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 2, line 15, remove "A student enrolled in an institution under the supervision of the 
state board of higher" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 19 with "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint 
of any school-sponsored media except when the media: 

a. Is libelous or slanderous: 

~ Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy: 

Q,, Violates federal or state law: or 

Q,_ So incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the 
commission of an unlawful act the violation of institution or state 
board of higher education policies, or the material and substantial 
disruption of the orderly operation of the institution . 

.Q.,, An institution may not sanction a student operating as an independent 
journalist. 

6. Each institution shall adopt a written student freedom of expression 
policy in accordance with this section. The policy must include 
reasonable provisions for the time, place, and manner of student 
expression ." 

Page 2, line 23, remove "a postsecondary educational" 

Page 2, line 24, replace "institution" with "an institution under the supervision of the state 
board of higher education" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "a postsecondary institution" with "an institution under the 
supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 3, line 1, remove "This section does not apply to any postsecondary educational 
institution that is" 

Page 3, remove lines 2 and 3 

Page 3, line 4, remove "4." 

Page 3, line 4, after "does" insert "not" 

Page 3, line 5, replace ".Q.,," with "4." 

Page 3, remove lines 7 through 11 

Page 4, line 12, remove "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 
guardian may" 

Page 4, replace lines 13 through 16 with "A school may not authorize any prior restraint of 
any school-sponsored media except when the media: 

.§.,, Is libelous or slanderous: 

~ Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy: 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_32_008 
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c. Violates federal or state law; or 

Q.,_ So incites students as to create a clear and present danger of the 
commission of an unlawful act. the violation of institution or state 
board of higher education policies. or the material and substantial 
disruption of the orderly operation of the institution." 

Page 4, line 17, after"§.,_" insert "A school may not sanction a student operating as an 
independent journalist. 

Page 4, line 19, after the underscored period insert "The policy may also include limitations 
to language that may be defined as profane, harassing, threatening. or intimidating." 

Renumber accordingly 
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2015 SENATE EDUCATION 

HB 1471 



201 5  S ENATE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 
Education Comm ittee 

Missouri River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1471 
3/18/2015 

Job # 25054 ( 1: 13: 12) 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resol ution: 

INITIAL HEARI NG 
Relating to freedom of expression rights of students of public institutions of higher 
education and public schools 

Min utes: 2.� A.ttachments 

Chairman Flakol l  called the committee to order at 10: 1 5am with all committee members 
present. 

Alex Looysen ,  District 1 2  Representative (see attachment #1)  
Representative Looysen :  In the House Education Committee, we amended the bill about 
8 times. Some things got overlooked and messed up but I do believe that these 
amendments are generally what the committee wanted (see attachment #2). They will be 
explained later. 

Chairman Flakoll :  I assume no one's grade depends upon the outcome of this bill? 
Representative Looysen: No it will not. 

(2:20) Steve Listopad , Assistant Professor of Journalism and Student Media Director at 
Valley City State University (see attachment #3) 

Chairman Flako l l :  What about community standards, like if they print something that 
wouldn't be printed in the Crosby Journal for instance? 
Listopad:  There was amended language from the House committee that was brought to us 
by the NDCEL that would address these concerns. We understand that high school is 
different than college. The Tinker review allows for acceptable prior review. Just like in our 
class, these types of things are addressed more directly than in a college environment. The 
bill says that each school board must mandate their own policy. We create a baseline 
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standard of first amendment protections for student and then school boards decide how 
that will be mitigated in their communities. 
C hairman Flakol l :  Are newspapers paid with student fees or general fund? 
Listopad: Regardless of how the school is funded, if you have a newspaper or name 
something a public forum, that needs to follow the rules of a public forum in regards to the 
first amendment. 
Chairman Flakol l :  Would they still be able to do spoof editions? 
Listopad: I would think so. The most important thing we want to protect is journalism. 

( 10:45) Cathy Ku h l meier, of Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier (see attachment #4) 

Chairman Flakol l: how does the non-journalistic parts of advertising? They may have 
limits on what they may or may not print. It would stand to reason if that if you have a high 
school paper, the board or school administrator may say "we're not putting the specials at 
XYZ bar". 
Ku h l meier: There should be some limits to what's going on with it, but have that 
communication open with the students, don't just be the administration laying down the law. 
If you want to groom the students to be educated adults, let them have that opportunity. 

( 1 7)  Fra nk D. LoMonte, Ex. Director of the Student Press Law Center (see attachment #5) 

C hairman Flakol l :  Please explain the amendments. 
LoMonte: Almost every one of the amendments is a clerical clean up. For instance you will 
see on page 4 that there was a clarification from school policies to school district policies. 
It's the same with page 4 line 22 regarding higher institutions. That was just a mistake­
page 4 always referred to K1 2 schools and it was just a glitch to have higher education 
institutions there. 
The only thing substantive change is to remove an unintentional replication of some K1 2 
language. We may have to amend the amendment. 
If Representative Looysen wants to restore the language that was struck, it would require 
an additional amendment that we will have to draft. It was an unintentional overwrite. It was 
not intended or discussed that that language be struck (see attachment #2. 1 )  

LoMonte: Community standards is dealt with in the language that would provoke a 
substantial disruption of school events. Let's say a student were to show up wearing a T­
shirt that had a gang symbol or racially hate language. They could exclude the student from 
school or make the student change clothing so as not to provoke a disruption of the school, 
that is a lawful act with or without this bill passing. That substantial disruption language as 
it's been interpreted over the years by the court, does include a community standard where 
the principal gets to make a judgment based on the conditions of the school. 

Chairman Flakoll :  You mentioned Benjamin Franklin and biogs versus the print. How can 
we ensure that there won't be a Silence Dogood situation? (Students using pen names) 
LoMonte: It is my understanding that it is a standard practice in every student publication 
that when you get a letter to the editor or a column, you contact the person to verify the 
identity because people have been known to pull pranks like that. 
Chairman Flakol l: but the bill is silent on that? 
LoMonte: Correct, the bill wouldn't change that practice. 
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Chairman Flakoll: Does this affect our E-rates? 
LoMonte: There is some distance between student publications versus the official 
curricular opinion of the school. 
Chairman Flakoll:  Right now a teacher in Bismarck can't use his or her Bismarck school 
district email to try to sway our opinions. 
LoMonte: We do monitor cases across the country. It's never been a problem. 

Senator Oban : What is your opinion on the House's removal of private institutions having 
to follow this same policy? 
LoMonte: In an ideal world, you would have all institutions of higher education subject to 
the same standards. It was Steve's decision along with the sponsor's that because there 
are relatively few private state institutions, it wasn't a big sacrifice. Different states have 
taken different approaches. It's not the majority view of the states right now to cover the 
private institutions. I cannot make a compelling argument. 
Senator Oban: As a graduate of University of Mary, I think they perhaps should take that 
seriously. 

(36) Steve Andrist, Ex. Director of the ND newspaper Association (see attachment #6) 
Andrist: To clarify some questions, speech is all governed by the same laws. The laws of 
the community standards that would be set by the school boards under this bill would still 
apply and the prohibition on provoking substantial disruption in the school system would 
remain, even if it is commercial speech. The opposition to the private schools provision in 
the House side came from the ND catholic conference. We feel that it would be a better law 
if it applied to private schools. 

C hairman Flakoll: Do you have advice for these students perusing a career within the 
newspaper business? 
Andrist: I had an opportunity to go to Century High School last week where some of the 
students were preparing testimony for this bill. Some of us from the industry pretended we 
were the members of the Senate Education Committee and asked them questions about 
their testimony. There are a lot of tremendous students in our state's school systems and 
our future is in good hands. I would tell them that you have the rights of the first 
amendment of the Constitution of the United States, but along with your rights come your 
responsibilities. Responsibility is equally important for all of the students to learn just as 
rights are. 

(4 1 :20) Dr. Aimee C opas, NDCEL (see attachment #7) 
Copas: I noticed that two words in our amendment were removed, and I would highly 
recommend them being included back in amendment on page 4 lines 27-29. They were the 
words of "lewd" and language defined as hate speech. The precipice of this law is to define 
better for schools interpretations of previous U.S. Supreme Court cases. As we do that, 
there are court cases that greatly define how K12 schools manage school policy with 
regard to student expression and student freedom of rights. Those particular words are 
important because they reflect other U.S. Supreme Court ruling that help define how 
schools look at that. Since one court case in in question, I think it is important that in the 
school district policy we make sure not to forget those two words as well. They are 
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important for K12 schools. I ask that those two little phrases are returned to the 
amendment. 

Chairman Flakoll:  What would you recommend to any student who feels that they have 
been aggrieved by their school district in terms of their course of action? 
Copas: They should follow the basic chain of command in expressing through their student 
journalist advisor and then through their principal and superintendent. If they don't receive 
the fair play, bring it to the local school board. If at that point you still don't feel like you're 
getting the fair treatment, they have do course of action through our U.S. legal system. I am 
confident that with the caliber of administrators and school board members that we have 
throughout the state, they would be managed appropriately within the system. 

Copas: To address the E-rate concern, it would be appropriate for districts to include in 
their policy a recommendation for a disclaimer on any public, political pieces. Every media 
source would be considered the publisher of the content. A student piece of journalism still 
has a publisher and that publisher would be considered the school district. When we walk 
into things that could come into direct opposition with things such as E-rate, a disclaimer on 
those particular articles would be a critical piece to having that published. There is a fine 
line between personal opinion and opinion based on your role at work. That is where that 
piece of the disclaimer is important, not saying that that completely removes the school 
district's responsibility, but it does at least do due diligence and puts forth the right faith 
effort with regard to that publication. 

(46: 15) Katie Winbauer, Bismarck State College's newspaper (see attachment #8) 

(48) Baelee Butts , general manager of the student media organization at Valley City State 
University (see attachment #9) 
Chairman Flakol l :  You have a different level of expectations when you are in the media. 
Often times because of social media, you will know information that is proprietary. As an 
example we hear someone who is killed in a car accident and you as a student may know 
the name before they release it. How would you view that in terms of your responsibility as 
a journalist? 
Butts :  At my last college, we had a student commit suicide. We all knew who he was 
before it was released. As a guideline, we would still do our duty and report it. We would 
never make that student sound poor, but I would still say to report like you are supposed to 
because news will get out ahead of you. 
Chairman Flako l l: It is important about how people find out about those situations. 

(52) Jeremy Murphy, Journalism adviser at West Fargo high school (see attachment #10) 

(54:25) Brittany Rheault, Jamestown Sun newspaper (see attachment #1 1)  
C hairman Flakoll :  You work for the West Fargo paper up to the Jamestown Sun. I know a 
writer for the NDSU Spectrum and is also a writer for the Fargo Moorhead Forum. This bill 
only pertains to his work with the college paper and not the Forum, correct? 
Rheault: Correct. This will bill will only affect the colleges and high schools. I am in the 
same situation as well. With this bill, it prepares us for that real-world experience. 
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(58:40) Sue Skalicky, High School journalism teacher (see attachment #12) 

Chairman Flako l l :  We seem to have focused mostly on print, but this applies to all media 
outlets, correct? 
Skalicky: Correct, we also maintain news social media. 

( 1 :03: 1 5) Faith Harron ,  Century Star and Bismarck Tribune (see attachment #13) 

Senator Oban: How would feel going to a college that doesn't follow this policy coming 
from a high school that did? 
Harron: That would be unfortunate. I would be disappointed but interested in pursuing a bill 
that would allow us to have those rights like this one and hopefully change that. 

Chairman Flakoll : At one time the Bismarck Tribune had a policy for not printing any 
legislators' emails during sessions. If there was a hard-hitting article on a school board 
member, would they have recourse to submit a letter to the editor to give their positions of 
why they did something? Should that be mandatory? 
Harron: With the Bismarck Tribune, you are allowed to send them editorials that will 
express your opinion. When I write an article, I try to interview people with different 
perspectives of the issue. 

(1:08:25) Murray Sagsveen, Chief of Staff in the NOUS office for Chancellor Skogen 
Sagsveen: There are 11 institutions and 11 student papers. The student publications use 
public resources to publish the papers particularly in print. During the months before the 
last general election, I received many inquiries concerning the ability of the student 
newspapers to publish anything having to do with the constitutional and initiated measures. 
I told them to be extremely careful because of the Corrupt Practices Act. There was a lot of 
attention particularly on measure 3 which had to do with the Board of Higher education and 
measure 7 which had to do with pharmacy related issues. 
I was interested on page 2 line 19 that says "an institution may not authorize any prior 
restraint of any school sponsored media except when the media violates federal or state 
law. The Corrupt Practices Act says that "no person may use any property belonging to or 
leased by or any service which is provided to or carried on by either directly or indirectly the 
state or any agency" and so on and so forth. Political purpose specifically says to take a 
position in support of or in opposition to a measure- a state-wide initiated or referred 
measure, a constitutional amendment or so on. I want to bring it to your attention that there 
is one thing that student newspapers really cannot talk or publish about and that is the 
constitutional measures initiated or referred because it may violate the Corrupt Practices 
Act. If we want students in higher education to have robust discussions about these 
measures, you may want to look at the nexus between the Corrupt Practices Act and this 
bill . We have 48,000 students in the university system and they should be involved in 
constitutional measures. 

Chairman Flakoll  closed the hearing on engrossed HB 1471. 

Further testimony in support of bill (see attachment #14 - # 1L\) 
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COMMITTEE WORK 

Min utes : Ii 2 Attachments 

Chairman Flakoll called the committee to order at 10 :30am 

(see attachment #1) 
Alex Looysen, District 12 Representative 

Chairman Flakol l :  Are you looking at those in conjunction with the amendments you 
handed out during the hearing? 
Representative Looysen : Legislative Council incorporated my proposed amendments into 
this amendment. The only change I asked them to make was on page 2 lines 1 6-27. The 
reasoning for the added language was that we would have a law in the books that doesn't 
direct them or have any teeth as to what they can do if they are censored. It adds it in for 
the colleges and K12 public schools. The rest of the amendment had already been 
discussed and what Frank LaMont from Washington, DC had said. 

Chairman Flako l l :  You support both of them? 
Representative Looysen :  I support these amendments more so than the ones proposed 
during the hearing. This was the intent of what we actually wanted. We just overlooked the 
fact that the civil action was taken out. It was a jumbled mess when we did it in the House 
and I am not sure the House Education committee intended to take those out necessarily 
either. 
Chairman Flakol l :  They were in the original bill but stricken in the House? Was it 
accidentally included in an amendment? 
Representative Looysen:  It was the last bill of the first half and the Chairman wanted to 
ensure we got it out. We took it up right after the testimony and through that, there were 
seven different amendments proposed by different people. I'm not sure why they were 
taken out. 
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Chairman Flako l l: You don't think that there was consternation over this part it? Was this 
part of a stand-alone amendment? 
Representative Looysen: I don't know when these were proposed to be taken out . I talked 
to Chairman Nathe and he didn't seem to have any issues with anything I was going to 
propose to bring back in. I don't think this was a hanging point on whether the bill would 
pass or not. 
Chairman Flakoll: He wanted the private schools back in? 
Representative Looysen: I don't believe so, no. 

Testimony in opposition to potential amended language relating to "prohibiting a private 
postsecondary education institution from enacting policies concerning student speech" from 
the North Dakota Catholic Conference received (see attachment #2) . 
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COMMITTEE DISCUSSION 

Min utes : 11 2 Attachments 

C hairman Flakoll  called the committee to order at 2 :  1 Opm with all committee members 
present. 

(see attachments #1 & #2) 
Chairman Flako l l :  I would be more inclined not to adopt the 2002 amendments. The 200 1 
amendments are included in the 2002 amendments, but the 2002 have the provision about 
civil action . 

Vice Chairman Rust: 200 1 is a clean-up. Was there any discussion about 4-6 being 
eliminated? 
Cha irman Flako l l :  They would prefer that lines 1 5-27 would be removed. 
Senator Oba n :  It is my understanding from the bill sponsor that the amendments he 
originally brought in were not correct, so he brought in 2002 which incorporates the 
changes that needed to made in 200 1 but also clarifies the confusion that was caused the 
way his original amendment was worded on page 2. 
V i ce Chairman Rust: If that is the case, then if you look at the difference between the two 
amendments with regard to pages 1 -3,  200 1 just removes the language completely on 
page 2 and 3 and on 2002, you are removing the lang uage but reinserting civil action. 200 1 
removes it and does not have anything about civil action. 
Chairman Flakoll:  There are different sections that are involved to some extent between 
the two of them. Some of the discussion points had language that they were talking about 
removing on page 2 whereas the amendments provided with the 2002 version have 
removals on section 2 starting on page 2 continuing through half way down page 3 and 
then 1 - 1 4  which is the rest of it. 
Vice Chairman Rust: 200 1 does the same. Page 3 lines 1-14 are eliminated so that is the 
same on both. Page 2 lines 28-29 are the same on both. 1 6-27 is removed also with the 
exception of adding the portion of civil action. Line 1 5  removes that also. The difference 
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between 2001 and 2002 is that one removes it all and the other one inserts a statement on 
civil action as I see it. 
C hairman Flakoll: Everyone seems to be in agreement with your analysis. 
Vice C hairman Rust: Then it is repeated again at the bottom of 2002 with the civil action. 
C hairman Flakoll:  Right. 

Vice C hairman Rust: If I am looking at this correctly, the difference between the two 
amendments is merely the insertion of penalty phases on page 2 and page 4. 
Senator Schaible: I see it that way as well. 

Vice Chairman Rust moves the adoption of the 2001 amendment. 
Senator Schai b le seconds the motion.  

Vice Chairman Rust: I am not ready to get into the civil actions yet. 
Senator Schai ble: After the bill's sponsor gave us these, he said it didn't work. 
Vice Chairman Rust: It seems like we are setting up the possibility of more than one court 
case if we adopt 2002. 

C hairman Flako l l: Senator Schaible, is your concern with the portion on the civil liability or 
just the overall amendments? 
Senator Schaible: The 2002 amendment is what the bill sponsor had in mind. Do we need 
to put language in there for someone to commit civil action? I don't think we do. I don't 
know what the amendments accomplish with or without it. 
Vice Chairman Rust: Wasn't there some on page 4 that it was inaccurate to have state 
board of higher education, and is that why he wanted "school district" in there? 
C hairman Flako l l :  I believe so. 

Senator Oban: It seems like the sponsor can't articulate to us why the civil action would be 
included. I can do some research, we need some clarification. 
C hairman Flakoll:  I would resist the amendment, but we do lack clarity. It seems like the 
committee seems unsure on what we may or may not wish to have. 
Vice Chairman Rust: For 2002 the reason you would want civil action in there is to give 
the law more power. I would be willing to withdraw my motion. 

Senator Schaible withd raws the second. 
Vice C hairman Rust withd raws the m otion to adopt the amendment. 

Chairman Flakoll: Is there any interest in having the civil action provision? 
Vice C hairman Rust: I am only interested in a reason as to why we would include it. 
Senator Oban: I struggle to have an opinion on something I know nothing about. 
Chairman Flakoll:  In some cases, we put in language that is already in other sections of 
code. We will come back to this tomorrow. 

C hairman Flako l l  ends the discussion on HB 1471. 
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John Bjornson , Legislative Council 

(see attachment #2) 
C hairman Flako l l :  Do people have civil liability already without the language? 
Bjornson : There certainly is the opportunity without this language to bring a civil action for 
a violation if a person believes they've had their first amendment or state constitutional 
rights violated. I assume this language is to make it absolutely clear with respect to this 
specific subject . Those rights are available to anybody regardless. 
Chairman Flako l l :  sometimes we are too redundant 
Bjornson : Yes, we draft a lot of amendments that seem to be saying "and yes we mean it". 
I think that is what these amendments are saying. 
Chairman Flakol l :  When we go back and do a rewrite of the education sections in Title 1 5 , 
those are the types of things that we snare out and determine that it is already covered 
somewhere else. We are reiterating something that they can do already? 
Bjornson : Correct. It's harmless to add but probably unnecessary. 
Chairman Flako l l :  Do we just add those to prove that it was discussed to confirm 
legislative intent? 
Bjornson : That is a fair statement. When it is printed in the law, it is even more verified. 
Chairman Flako l l :  As an example with clerks, they would go back and read the minutes 
and listen to the tape to uncover legislative intent? 
Bjornson: Correct 

(see attachment #1 & #2) 
Senator Oban: In either amendment it removes lines 1 5-29 on page 2. 
Bjornson : This comes from the result of a U.S. Supreme Court case that said that a high 
school principal could exercise prior restraint with respect to the publication of a student led 
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newspaper. There was question as to whether it applies to higher education. It was clear 
that prior restraint was authorized with respect to high school publications. 
Chairman Flakol l :  How would you define "prior restraint"? 
Bjornson :  It would be the government or school district denying publication in advanced. 
Chairman Flako l l :  The university system had some issues with the Corrupt Practices Act. 
If we adopt those changes with prior restraint, does that change that in any way? 
Bjornson: The Corrupt Practices Act applies to the use of state resources for election 
related activities ... 
Chairman Flako l l :  Case in point would be Measure 3 last fall. 
Bjornson : The Act does not apply to editorials or opinion pieces. 

(10:55) Vice Chairman Rust: He stated what I thought I was going to do yesterday. Those 
two statements are not necessary. I am inclined to go with amendment 2001. 

Vice Chairman Rust motions for the adoption of the 1 5.0825.02001 amendments. 
Senator Schai ble seconds the motion.  

Chairman Flakol l :  Senator Oban, Are there any issues evident in the technical corrections 
during your discussions? 
Senator Oba n :  No. in every discussion I had, it was the exact result that we just had with 
John Bjornson. Now I am comfortable with the 2001 amendments. 

A vote was taken :  5 yays, 0 n ays, 1 absent 
Senator Davison later votes "yes" 
The motion carries 6-0. 

Senator Schai ble motions for a DO PASS for engrossed HB 1 471 as amended. 
Senator Oban secon ds the motion.  

Chairman F lakol l :  These are technical corrections that were forwarded by the bill's primary 
sponsor. I have visited with the Chair of House Education, and he doesn't seem to have 
any issues with this. 
Senator Oba n :  I did look for the bill's sponsor this morning but was not able to find him. 

A vote was take n :  6 yays, 0 nays, 0 a bsent. 
The motions carries 6-0. 

Senator Oban wil l  carry the bi l l .  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, remove lines 15 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0825.02001 
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Remove lines 15-29 on page 2 and lines 1-14 on page 3; replace "institution" with 
"school"; after "school" insert "district"; replace "institution or state board of higher 
education" with "school district"; renumber accordingly 

No 
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Total 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 24, 201511:55am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_54_003 
Carrier: Oban 

Insert LC: 15.0825.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1471, as engrossed: Education Committee (Sen. Flakoll, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1471 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, remove lines 15 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Testimony of Rep. Alex Looysen, 01 2 
North Dakota House Education Committee 

HB 1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 
February 1 7, 201 5 

Good morning Chairman Nathe and members of the House Education 
committee. For the record, my name is Alex Looysen, representative of District 
1 2  in Jamestown. House bill 1 471 started as a class project at the University of 
Jamestown. The students researched current state and national laws affecting 
student journalists and created a rough draft of their findings. After that, several 
people, including some that will speak after me, continued their work and house 
bill 1 471 is the result of all that hard work. In general, this is a bipartisan bill that 
addresses freedom of speech and press for student journalists and their 
advisors. I know there are several people here today to testify that have a lot 
more knowledge on this bill than I do, so in the interest of time Mr. Chairman I 
would ask that the committee hold their questions for those testifying after me. 

Thank you . 

H·B / Lf1  I 
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Testimony of Steven Listopad 
Assistant Professor/Student Media Di rector, Valley City State University 

North Dakota House Education Com mittee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wal l New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

Thank you Rep. Looysen, and thank you Chairman Nathe and members of the 
House Education Committee for hearing our testimony today. 

I 'm Steve Listopad , assistant professor of journalism and student media director 
at Valley City State University and previously at the University of Jamestown . 
Before my career as a journalism educator, I was a journalism student and 
student journal ist at North Dakota State University and North Dakota State 
College of Science. And even before that, I was a student journalist at Wahpeton 
High School and reporter for The Daily News. From 1 99 1  to 1 995, I spent every 
day of school learning about the how's and why's of journalism from the most 
amazing teacher, mentor and coach I have ever known - John Wal l .  

It is such a great honor to be here today. To look around the room and see so 
many passionate and intell igent students, educators and professionals engaged 
in such a worthwhile civic activity is truly heartwarming . Just weeks after the 
House and Senate so overwhelmingly passed the mandatory civics test, to have 
this opportunity to turn civic knowledge into civic action with our students makes 
me bel ieve that, no matter the outcome, these years of work have been worth it. 
This is truly a great moment for all us. 

Today, you are going to hear from a variety of stakeholders in support of HB 
1 471 - The John Wall New Voices Act. You are going to hear from journalism 
advisers and their students. You are going to hear from professional journalists . 
You are going to hear from national leaders and experts on the subject. And the 
reason you're going to hear from us is because we can speak to you - that's the 
First Amendment in action. But not all North Dakota students are as lucky as 
those in this room.  Not all students in this state are allowed to speak to you .  Not 
more than three weeks ago, I called a high school newspaper adviser in our state 
to let them know about the John Wal l New Voices Act. I had hopes that the 
adviser would be able to share the information with the students and that, at the 
very least, the students would be interested in doing a story on the bil l . I barely 
got through the first sentence when I was cut off. The adviser told me the 
students working for that particular newspaper in that particular school district 
could not report on anything political . That could 've been the end of the 
conversation. But I, and the rest of the supporters of the John Wal l New Voices 
Act, wi l l  carry on that very important conversation right here, today. A 
conversation about the fundamental expression rights of our young people, about 
the fai lure of the Hazelwood Supreme Court decision as an educational standard 



for student journalists, about the need for student journal ists to be civically 
engaged - not just for them, but for all of us, and about how we can make North 
Dakota a better place for the new voices emerging everyday to learn , grow and 
engage. 

The John Wall New Voices Act was conceived at the University of Jamestown as 
a class project in  the spring of 201 3. UJ is a private school yet President Robert 
Badal has supported his students, faculty and this bi l l  from the very beginning. 
The UJ students that wrote this bi l l  not only sought to codify their own expression 
rights into law, but to protect those rights for all students in our state. I am so 
proud of them ,  and I am honored to help carry the torch as they have moved into 
their careers. 

The John Wall New Voices Act wil l  do three things: It wi l l  Restore the Tinker 
Standard in our public h igh schools. I t  wi l l  Protect our public col leges from the 
encroachment of Hazelwood to higher education via the 2005 Hosty v. Carter 
decision. And it wil l  Extend the First Amendment freedoms journalism and 
journalists need to private colleges, simi lar to California's Leonard Law. All of the 
background research leading to this bi l l ,  including similar bills passed in other 
states, can be found on the bi l l 's website - www. newvoicesnd.com. 

Gene Policinski , executive director of the Newseum and First Amendment 
Institute said, "We are creating a generation that takes no for an answer." With 
the John Wall New Voices Act, we have a chance to do something about it . I 
know that Mr. Wal l fol lowed the Tinker Standard, which says that there must be 
evidence of substantial disruption to justify censorship. I know because I l ived his 
principles every day for four years of my l ife. I am so glad that Margaret Wall 
could be here today. Mr. Wal l 's students from his 30 years as a journal ism 
educator will be carrying on his values and bringing his lessons to future 
generations. This bi l l  is one more invaluable lesson from Mr. Wal l .  Hazelwood 
was only a few years old when I fi rst met Mr. Wal l .  Even in the new Hazelwood 
environment, Mr. Wall al lowed us to take on stories of corruption and 
embezzlement in our schools. And now at a high school in our state, 27 years 
after the Hazelwood decision, our students don 't even have the right to report on 
th is bi l l  - a bi l l  about them, for them, and by them. And that high school is 
certainly not alone. Hazelwood's deleterious effects can be felt all across the 
state at every level : school boards, principals and advisers pul l ing stories, cutting 
budgets, stopping the presses, firing advisers, and cutting whole programs just to 
exercise a measure of control that is both invasive and ineffective. The two high 
schools you 'l l  hear from today, Bismarck Century and West Fargo, are in the 
minority. These high schools honor the values of journal ism education and civic 
life by respecting their students' right to choose the stories that are important to 
them. The accolades, the scholarships, and the careers that come from this 
effective educational method are testimony to its efficacy. And the fact that this 



room is fu l l  of those students is testimony to the civic responsibil ity that is 
ingrained in students that we al low to own their words. 

This is truly a great day. 

Next you 're going to hear from Frank LoMonte, executive director of the Student 
Press Law Center, and one of the leading national experts on law pertaining to 
student journal ists . Mr. LoMonte is one of the best people in the country to 
answer the questions concerning how this bi l l  wil l work and how it wil l  affect us. 

But first I want to thank all the supporters of the John Wall New Voices Act, 
including, but not l imited to : the bi l l 's sponsors, representatives Looysen, Haak, 
Mock, and Becker, and senators Grabinger and Luick. The North Dakota 
Newspaper Association and its membership. The Journalism Education 
Association and the Northern Interscholastic Press Association . President Badal 
and The University of Jamestown. Mary Beth Tinker, Cathy Kuhlmeier Frey, 
Frank LoMonte and the Student Press Law Center. The journalism department at 
Kent State University and College Media Association. All the national 
organizations that have passed resolutions to support bills just l ike this one. All 
the states that have tried and succeeded and tried and failed to pass bil ls just l ike 
this one. Al l the educators, administrators, and professionals in North Dakota and 
beyond who have reached out to us with advice and support. The six students 
that started all of this: Peter Odney, Masaki Ova, Dan Arens, Jessee Boyle, 
Ashley Domino and the late Josh Berg . Those six, and all the students you see in 
this room today, and all the students across this state are the New Voices. We 
need to teach them about civic facts, but we also need to teach them about civic 
engagement. We don't want the new voices in our world retreating to the dark 
recesses of the Internet to have important conversations. We want those 
conversations to happen in the l ight of day, where they can be cared for and 
nurtured - l ike Mr. Wal l did for me and so many others. Our New Voices - We 
need to hear what they have to say - we need to hear what they ALL have to 
say. And only HB1 471 , the John Wal l  New Voices Act, can make that happen. 

Thank you .  



Testimony of Frank D. LoMonte 
Executive Director, Student Press Law Center 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1471, The John Wall New Voices Act 

February 17, 2015 

It is a distinct honor to be invited to share information about the law governing the 
rights of student journalists with the Committee. Since 1974, the nonprofit Student Press 
Law Center has been the leading source of information about legal issues of importance 
to the student media. The attorneys of the SPLC publish the widely used reference text, 
Law of the Student Press (41

h ed. 2013), recognized as the nation's most comprehensive 
compendium of legal research about student media. Our free attorney hotline receives 
some 2,000 requests for assistance every year from students and educators in all 50 
states. The SPLC was established to assist students facing institutional roadblocks when 
they seek to gather information and share ideas. 

Student journalism is essential to educated, civically aware communities 

Student media is one of the most popular extracurricular activities in schools 
everywhere. While no comprehensive "census" of student journalism exists, researchers 
at Kent State University conducted an instructive survey of 4,000 public high schools 
across America in 2011 and found that 96 percent offered at least one student media 
outlet (print, online or broadcast) . There are more than 11,000 student newspapers in 
public high schools alone, outnumbering professional newspapers by 3,000. By far, the 
majority of journalists in America work on school and college campuses, not in salaried 
professional positions. 

Americans have never in their history been more dependent on students to bring 
them the news on which they rely. According to a July 2014 study published by the Pew 
Research Center, at least 14 percent of all of the journalists covering state Capitols are 
students, and in four states (Arizona, Kansas, Missouri and Nevada) student journalists 
actually outnumber salaried professionals. The Knight Foundation has called on college 
journalism programs to re-imagine themselves as "teaching hospitals," serving the basic 
information needs of their communities in the same way that medial schools use medical 
students to serve communities' health-care needs. 

Coverage of education issue is especially reliant on the work of students, because 
the number of full-time education reporters has dwindled alarmingly. In a December 2009 
study ("Invisible: 1.4 Percent for Education is Not Enough"), the Brookings Institution 
found that only 1.4 percent of mainstream news coverage (print, broadcast and online) is 
devoted to education, and most is crisis-driven (campus violence, disease outbreaks) 
and not about education policy issues. As part of the solution, the Brookings report called 
for an end to school censorship of student journalism: "Some school officials discourage 
student reporters from asking difficult questions or raising controversial issues. In fact, 
student journalism of this kind should be encouraged. Student newspapers often lead the 
media to important education stories." 

Student Press Law Center 1608 Rhode Island Ave. NW. Suite 211 Washington, D.C . 20036 
www.splc.org splc@splc.org (202) 785-5450 



The Supreme Court's Hazelwood ruling has damaged the quality of education 

Every authoritative group involved in journalism education and training has gone 
on record condemning the level of school control contemplated by the Supreme Court's 
1988 ruling in Hazelwood School District v. Kuhlmeier as educationally unsound. During 
2013, the 251

h anniversary of the Hazelwood decision, resolutions calling for schools and 
colleges to cease reliance on Hazelwood were unanimously enacted by the Society of 
Professional Journalists (SPJ), the Journalism Education Association (JEA), and the 
Association for Education in Journalism and Mass Communication (AEJMC). These are 
the largest organizations in the country representing, respectively, working professional 
journalists, high school journalism educators, and college journalism educators. The 
wording of the SPJ resolution exemplifies the sentiments: "[l]t is well-documented the 
Hazelwood censorship clause impedes an educator's ability to adequately instruct and 
train students in professional journalistic values and practices, including the right to 
question authority and investigate performances of governance." 

Laws protecting student press freedom are proven to be safe and effective 

The Constitution provides a floor, not a ceiling, on the rights that state and local 
governments may extend to their citizens. Seven states (Arkansas, California, Colorado, 
Iowa, Kansas, Massachusetts and Oregon) statutorily provide students enhanced press 
freedom above the minimum recognized by the Supreme Court in Hazelwood. 1 Three 
other jurisdictions - the District of Columbia, Pennsylvania and Washington - do so by 
way of State Board of Education regulation. The combined experience of these 10 states 
with legislatively mandated press freedom exceeds 175 years; in all of that time, there 
has not been a single reported case of a school or college being successfully sued over 
material published in a student news outlet. A study published in 2013 in the Maine Law 
Review could find only six instances - three in California, two in Massachusetts and one 
in Iowa - in which a student free-press statute had ever been raised in litigation. The 
experience of these states is that, by clarifying the bounds of school censorship authority, 
such statutes avoid more litigation than they enable . 

Reversing the impact of the Supreme Court's 1988 Hazelwood ruling merely 
restores the sensible balance that existed before 1988 - the standard set by the Court in 
Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community School District (1968) . Under Tinker, the 
school may prevent or punish speech that threatens a "substantial disruption" of school 
activities - something more than just a strong exchange of differing opinions. Tinker is far 
from being an "anything goes" standard - in fact, it is the standard that applies today to 
students' T-shirts, hairstyles and other "non-curricular" forms of speech, to which schools 
have become accustomed over the last 47 years. Rolling back Hazelwood merely gives a 
student the same (limited) level of First Amendment protection on the editorial page that 
she has on the T-shirt she wears to school. 

1 Illinois protects only college and not high-school journalists. See 11 O ILCS 13/1 ("the 
College Campus Press Act"). 

Student Press Law Center 1608 Rhode Island Ave. NW, Suite 211 Washington , D.C. 20036 
www.splc.org splc@splc.org (202) 785-5450 



Testimony of Mary Beth Tinker to House Education Committee 
Regarding John Wal l  Youth Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

To Chairman Mike Nathe and the House Education Committee 

Thank you for your interest in student journalism and for holding this hearing.  At a time 
when schools across the country are searching for ways to engage students in civic 
action , you are giving the students of North Dakota a valuable civics lesson .  And , at a 
time when many citizens, including students, question whether their voices wi l l  be 
heard , you have welcomed and encouraged the voices of young people. 

The John Wal l  Youth Voices Act is f ine example of civic action on the part of young 
people.  Students themselves identified a problem, proposed a solution,  and are 
seeking a change in public pol icy through the legislative process. I urge you to g ive your 
support for this b i l l  and for the students of  North Dakota. 

In doing so, you wi l l  g ive a vote of confidence to students l ike Peter Odney, one of the 
journalism students at the University of Jamestown who developed and championed 
this bi l l . When I asked him why he had done that, he said that recently, as editor- in-chief 
of The Colleg ian, he wanted to include all opinions about the change in the school 's 
name from Jamestown College to the University of Jamestown . 

He knew that some of those opinions might not be popular, and that some might even 
be seen as controversial ,  but he didn 't want to leave anyone out or censor anyone. So, 
he helped create the John Wal l  Youth Voices Act because "If you take away student 
voice, students don't have any incentive to take part in the democratic process. They 
feel that they're being told , 'we don't trust you to do what's right." 

Peter is proud that the John Wall Youth Voices Act has gone from a small kernel of an 
idea to proposed legislation , saying "that's kind of the whole point of democracy, isn't 
it?" He follows u pdates on the bi l l  on the facebook page that he and students created . 

Peter's contribution and that of others is "kind of the whole idea of democracy." You ,  as 
policy makers, now have a chance to show students l ike Peter that you agree, and that 
you have faith in students to rise to the chal lenges of our democracy. 

When I was young,  I knew what it was l ike to be told not to have an opinion, not to use 
my voice, and not to take part in democracy because I was too young.  

I g rew up in Des Moines, Iowa, where I studied lessons at school ,  but also learned the 
values of my family and the Methodist church where my father was a minister. Christian 
ideals of peace, love, and brotherhood were deeply ingrained, and only became 
stronger when my fami ly became involved with the Quakers. 

1 



The year I turned 1 3- 1 965- was a sad time for me as and our country. That Christmas, 
my father read bible verses and lit the yule log , but on TV we saw the horror of the 
Vietnam war. Chi ldren ran from huts and soldiers lay in body bags. In our midwestern 
community, boys not much older than my brothers were being drafted for the war. 

My sibl ings and a few friends decided to wear black armbands to school that Christmas 
to mourn the war dead and support a cal l  for a Christmas truce. All we knew was that 
we wanted to express our feel ings about the war. 

But when the principals heard our plan , they passed a rule against armbands, saying 
that students who wore them would be suspended . We tried to change their minds, and 
talked with the principals, the superintendent, and the school board. Some school board 
members voted in our favor, but they were outnumbered and we were suspended . 

I n  1 969 , the U .S .  Supreme Court had the final say. It ruled by 7-2 that students in  public 
schools do have free speech rights, and that students- and teachers- do not "shed their  
constitutional rights to freedom of speech or expression at the school house gate."  

It  was a landmark ru l ing , a vote of confidence in students everywhere. Some people 
predicted that the ruling would be a disaster, that students would abuse their rights and 
cause havoc in the schools. But no such thing happened . "Tinker v Des Moines 
I ndependent Community School District" became a precedent for student speech rights. 

After the ru l ing ,  I grew up and became a pediatric nurse, working with teenagers in  
schools, c l in ics and hospitals. I learned that students do better, and are even healthier, 
when they have input into their schools and their l ives. I learned that schools where 
students have a voice are schools where students succeed, and want to be. 

No wonder students are more l ikely to graduate from such schools, with thriving 
journalism programs, student councils and student government. In  such schools, 
students feel valued as members of their schools and the larger community. 

With the John Walls New voices Act, you have a chance to send a vote of confidence to 
students, students l ike Faith Harron,  a reporter for the Century Star at Century High 
School i n  Bismarck. Faith writes about mi l itary famil ies, but also wrote about this bi l l  for 
the Bismarck Tribune. 

She said the bi l l  is important because "Journalism helps us be informed and connected 
i n  the world . . .  to tell important stories that otherwise people might not hear."  

Show Faith that her voice matters. Students are the future, but they are also the 
present, and they are asking for your support. 

Thank you , 
Mary Beth Tinker 
Washington DC 



Testimony of Steve A ndrist 
Executive Director, North Dakota Newspaper Association 

Before the North Dakota House Education Committee 
re: HB 1471 - - The John Wall New Voices Act 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: My name is Steve Andrist, and as executive director 
of the North Dakota Newspaper Association I represent the 79 weekly and 1 0  daily newspapers in the 
state. 

The N DNA Government Reiations Committee and the NDNA Board of Directors have both adopted 
resolutions in support of HB 1 47 1 .  Here's why. 

Journalism, and newspapers in particular, are alive and well in North Dakota. We know from research 
conducted last year that more than 83 percent of North Dakota adults regularly read a local news­
p aper. Even three quarters of young adults, those who everyone says get their news in different ways 
these days, regularly read a newspaper. Some read it in print, some on a tablet or computer or mobile 
device. But whatever form they choose, they are reading content generated by journalists working for 
newspapers. 

Like most industries, newspapers see our youth as our future. For that reason we have been putting 
more and more of our resources into educating both high school and college students about the role 
that journalism plays in maintaining vital communities and an informed electorate. We are providing 
paid internships, higher education scholarships, and even news fellowships in Washington, D.C. 

It is important that students who may choose careers in journalism are educated using the same tools 
as those used by their professional counterparts. We certainly wouldn't teach journalism without giv­
ing students access to computers and mobile devices that assist in gathering and disseminating infor­
mation and images. Nor should we teach journalism without giving students the same rights to free 
speech and govern ment transparency as those afforded to professional journalists. 

HB 1 47 1  gives those tools to our students, to our state's future journalists, and therefore we respect­
fully request your support by voting favorably on it. 

1435 Interstate Loop • Bismarck, North Dakota 58503-0567 • phone: 701 -223-6397 • fax: 701 -223-81 85 
www.ndna.com 



Testimony of Jeremy Murphy 
West Fargo Public Schools publication adviser 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

First, thank you to the representatives for having me and allowing my students to 
be a part of this process. As a journal ism adviser for the last 1 0  years and a 
professional journal ist before that, I 'm always looking for moments they can 
experience government in action and it doesn't get more valuable than this. I was 
thinking about them participating in this process and it reminded me of a quote I 
heard last week from political consultant David Axelrod . He said , "Government is 
the vehicle by which we make progress and make the world a better place."  

This quote rings true to me because I have the same forward-thinking 
phi losophy. I know there are numerous ways to evaluate the success of a 
teacher, but to me one of the most valuable is the success of that teacher's 

. students after they leave the classroom. 

For the last few years, I have been fortunate enough to work as a publ ications 
adviser in a district that values student journalism. Students have flourished in 
this environment, starting a new broadcast program, working with district officials 
during open records requests, starting a literary magazine, visiting top state 
officials, col laborating with local media and winning numerous state and national 
awards and scholarships. All of which has been student-directed .  

It hasn't always been that way in West Fargo. The national and state recognition 
was sti l l  there, but the supportive district officials were not . As an adviser, I 
encouraged a collaborative, student-run environment no different than the one we 
have today, but I was removed from my position .  That is why this bi l l  is so 
important to publications programs around the state. It wi l l  provide al l students 
with an opportunity to thrive and gain ski l ls today's workforce deems necessary. 

As a forward-focused adviser, I 'm looking for ways to al low students to practice 
skil ls that wi l l  g ive them the best opportunity to be successful in their future 
endeavors. The National Association of Col leges and Employers says the top 
ski l ls employers want in new hires includes : critical thinking, communication, 
col laboration , t ime management, data analysis ,  technical knowledge, writ ing, 
editing and marketing ski l ls. I have also had the opportunity to visit with multiple 
employers in the Fargo-Moorhead area and they echo these results . If you visit 
any of the top publications rooms in the state, you will see students practicing 
these ski l ls in a real-world , student run environment every single day. But 
currently, that environment is only possible in a supportive situation l ike we have 
in West Fargo today. 

f o 



I have been on both sides of the spectrum ,  from a restrictive environment to an 
expressive one. If we really want students to attain these skills, and as a resu lt ,  
make the world a better place l ike Axelrod suggests, this b i l l  is a necessary step 
in that d i rection. 



Testimony of Emily Chadwick 
West Fargo Public Schools journalism student 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

The past three years I have had the amazing opportunity to be a part of West 
Fargo High School 's journalism program through which I have been able to 
flourish and openly express myself in the environment. The program has 
provided me with the skil ls that are necessary to be a professional journalist. I 
have been able to take on the responsibi lity to write and report about sensitive 
topics without the worry of administrative disapproval ,  because my school is not 
subject to prior review the opportun ities for our news staff are endless. This has 
caused us to develop a state winning newspaper along with being nationally 
recognized. With this said I want the same opportunities for the other staffs in  
North Dakota. 

I believe that if this bi l l  is passed schools wi l l  have the opportunity to expand their 
journalistic views in  order to properly train students in real world journalism. As a 
student journal ist we want nothing more than to be treated professionally but if 
we are censored it becomes harder to report the stories that need to be told, thus  
discouraging our  duties as reporters. 

As a student it should be our right to know what is going on in our school and 
commun ity. We are the future generation of this state, we should know what is 
going on around us and our voices should be heard . 

{ d-



Testimony of Logan Ahern 
West Fargo Public Schools journalism student 

North Dakota House Education Com mittee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

First and foremost, I am a journal ist who has a strong passion in  reporting the 
most relevant news and information to the community. This journalist drive 
influenced me to apply for the Al Neuharth Free Spirit Scholarship to learn from 
professionals and better myself by hearing the perspectives of students from 
across the nation . 

I was eventually awarded the scholarship and on my trip to Washington D .C . ,  I 
was able to interact with students and to my surprise, I learned that each had 
dealt with issues regarding the fi rst amendment in each of their schools. Student 
journal ists were inhibited in their creativity and passion because of their fi rst 
amendment rights taken away from them by the school . I heard stories of 
students having their stories stripped from their publ ications only because their 
administration bel ieved it reflected badly on themselves. 

In my publication at West Fargo High School ,  the Packer newspaper, we are 
completely self-funded so we do not have to go under any prior review from our 
administration. This gives us the abi l ity to ethically report any events going on in 
our school respectfully del ivering the most current and accurate news to our 
community. Without this benefit we may not have had the opportunity to report on 
the f ir ing of a football coach or the freedom of expression being l im ited in music 
departments. 

I am a strong believer in First Amendment rights and our generation cannot 
afford to be without them. As a Free Spirit alumni I have learned the importance 
of the freedom of speech, freedom of the press, freedom of rel igion, freedom of 
petition and freedom of assembly. These rights have al lowed student journalists 
in the publ ications I am involved in and all over the country fight to never take no 
for an answer. 
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Testimony of Susan Skalicky 
Bismarck Public Schools journalism educator 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wall  New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

My name is Sue Skalicky.  I am a journalist and have been one for over 25 years. 
I have been a high school journalism teacher at Century High School for almost 
ten years. But, one of the most rewarding th ings I have ever done professionally 
is to advise high school publications at Century.  Over the past ten years, I have 
witnessed teenagers wrestle with making decisions in the classroom, decisions 
that wil l  have a public impact. And , instead of tel l ing them what to do, I 've asked 
them to recall what they've learned about their First Amendment rights and the 
responsibi lities that come with those rights.  In the end , it has been thri l l ing to 
watch them wrestle with options, discuss the impact of each option ,  and decide 
how to move forward. 

I 've been privileged to offer advice, proud when students have applied 
responsibi l ities to their First Amendment rights, and amazed when they have far 
exceeded my expectations for a high school journalist. I have been the proud 
adviser of a Robert F. Kennedy award for adversity winner, five Free Spirit 
national award winners, and countless JEA/NSPA national individual and 
publication award winners. Because of the freedom to practice professional 
journalism in an educational setting , without prior review and censorship, my 
students have been able to not only fulfi l l ,  but clearly surpass, this year's staff­
written mission : " To inspire the Century High School community to engage in 
sustained partnerships in the greater Bismarck community, impact local business 
and government, and ignite positive community change and enhanced student 
learning." I have yet to meet any Century journalism students who have a desire 
to run amok with their First Amendment freedoms, abusing the privilege. But, I 
have met many young men and women who have wanted to make a difference 
by "seeking the truth and reporting it , "  and they have done just that - not just 
once, but over, and over, and over again. 

Even the threat of censorship hinders student free speech and a free scholastic 
press, because the students aren't allowed to explore every possibi l ity. Instead , 
they are spending their t ime and energy trying to contain their thoughts and ideas 
within the boundaries of a lesson,  the only impact being that on their GPA. 
Students with First Amendment freedoms naturally collaborate, th ink critical ly, 
exercise creativity, and communicate professionally, because they are motivated 
to make a difference in matters important to them, their peers, and their 
community. 



If the John Wall New Voices Act passes in  the state of North Dakota, all 
journalism students in our state, both in high school and college, wil l  be able to 
freely explore what matters to them and their peers, and make a difference by 
inspiring, impacting, and igniting their schools and larger communities with their 
words and voices. 

Thank you for your consideration of this extremely important bi l l .  

I have two students here with me today to share their experiences with First 
Amendment rights in a school setting, both high school (Kacey Peterson) and 
college (Carrie Sandstrom). 



Testimony of Kacey Peterson 
Bismarck Public Schools journal ism student 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

My name is Kacey Peterson and I am the current Editor of the Century Star, the 
monthly newsmagazine at Century High School .  I oversee the magazine staff 
from the day we brainstorm story ideas to the day we pass it on to our readers. 
Some months run smoothly and other months we face tough decisions about our 
content. 

Our main focus this year has been community engagement. Our goal with 
commun ity engagement is to start and maintain a conversation with the CHS 
student body and our community. I n  order for th is conversation to be beneficial to 
both sides, we need to decide what our readers need to know. 

Sometimes the decision about what to publ ish can be difficult. In that case, we 
start by consulting the staff and collecting ideas. Next, we consult our adviser. 
Advice from our adviser usually is a reminder of our First Amendment rights and 
of the responsibil ity we carry to uphold those rights. That responsibi l ity plays a 
significant role in how we decide whether or not to publish certain  stories. If we 
were a censored magazine, this advice may sound l ike, "Stay within the 
guidelines and don't upset anyone." We may not be able to publish stories about 
such things as teen pregnancy, eating d isorders, or racism- all topics that have 
an impact on our student body. 

When we, the Century Star staff, make our own decisions, it motivates us to do 
the most professional job possible. If our adviser, or an administrator, were to 
make al l the decisions about what we could or could not print, we would only be 
motivated by a grade and we wouldn't be able to feel the same sense of pride we 
do now. Instead , we have the privilege of "Inspiring , Igniting , and Impacting" our 
peers at Century and the community with news we believe they need to hear. 

Thank you for your consideration of the John Wall New Voices Act. 
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Testimony of Carrie Sandstrom 
University of North Dakota journalism student 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wall  New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

Hello, my name is Carrie Sandstrom and I am a junior at the University of North 
Dakota double majoring in communication and international studies. During my 
short journalism career, I have worked for a variety of publications - serving as 
assistant editor for the Century High School newspaper and editor- in-chief of 
UND's Dakota Student newspaper. I have also had the privi lege of interning for 
the Bismarck Tribune during my senior year of high school and of working in the 
Grand Forks Herald 's sports department. 

At the various publications I have worked at, I have had the abil ity to learn from 
professionals in the field and from teachers and advisers who have taken it upon 
themselves to usher in the next generation of journal ists. Through these 
experiences, I have been impressed both with the requirements of the job and 
the responsibil ity it carries with it. But for students, I have come to learn that one 
of the most important factors for telling the stories we encounter is the abil ity to 
print them freely. It is because I believe in the power of the press and the 
importance of protecting it that I am pleased to stand before you and urge you to 
pass the John Wall New Voices Act. 

During my time at high school, as part of one of my first experiences with student 
journal ism, I found myself caught up in a story. A story that, unl ike many I had 
covered before, was not clear cut and did not offer the instant gratification of an 
easy piece. It started when I noticed that water bottles purchased through the 
school cafeteria cost 25 cents more than their school-run vending machine 
counterparts. The price discrepancy intrigued me, and I ended up spending over 
a month hunting down the cause. After speaking with school administrators, 
representatives from the water bottle provider and others, I wrote a short 200-
word story outl in ing the price difference and just why students were paying more 
in the cafeteria. The piece ran in one of the last issues of the Century Star for the 
year, and when students returned to school fol lowing summer break, we were 
greeted with uniform water bottle prices throughout the school .  This small change 
- measured l iterally in cents - provided me with a priceless lesson :  Student 
journalists have the power to create meaningful change in our schools. 

However, it was not unti l  I began my col legiate newspaper career that I learned 
firsthand that student journalists have the power not only to impact their schools 
but the community at large, as wel l .  Unfortunately, unl ike my time at Century 
High School, I found col lege journal ists, at least at UNO,  face much more 
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administrative pressure than I felt during my high school career. Perhaps it is 
because instead of a circulation of 1 ,500 students the "Dakota Student" reaches 
1 5 ,000, perhaps it is because instead of coming out once a month, the "Dakota 
Student" came out twice a week, perhaps it's all just a fluke. Regardless, during 
my time as Editor- in-Chief of UND's only student newspaper, I found myself 
constantly on the defensive. 

There was a period early in the fal l of 201 3 when several high-level pink sl ips 
were being handed out as quietly as possible. As one of the few means of 
holding admin istrators accountable for thei r  actions, it was my obl igation to 
assign and publish a series of articles documenting the firings. As a student and 
a student employee, I spent many long nights worried that I wou ld be the next 
person told to pack up their desk. 

The stories we wrote were valid.  They were important. And they were necessary. 
And the fact that as journalists we were afraid we would be fired or have our 
academic careers threatened for writing stories that were val id, important and 
necessary simply because the journalists that wrote the stories were students is 
unacceptable. 

We were lucky. The fear of being fi red can never compare to the reality of my 
peers at other  schools and in other states who have lost their jobs for doing their 
jobs. But luck cannot replace legal protection . Not with something so important. 
Not when l ives and futures are the price of a change in fortune. Not when the 
truth and the abil ity to tel l  it is on the l ine. 

The words we write matter. 

They impact those who read them. 

They create change. 

But only if they are heard. 

The freedom of student presses should not and cannot be contingent upon the 
moods of the administration . The stories we are tel l ing are too important. 
Students have the abil ity to create change, but you have the power to protect it. I 
urge you to do so by passing this bi l l .  



Testimony of Cathy Kuh lmeier Frey (in absentia) 
Hazelwood School District v. Kuh lmeier 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

Our expectation of today's youth is to become well-educated and responsible 
adu lts so that they can become leaders for our future. It is our teachers' 
responsibi l ity to teach these young people and to spark an interest in their l ives, 
which can be accompl ished in many d ifferent arenas. 

My spark just so happened to have come in the area of journalism. Our teacher 
did his job of growing our m inds and ambitions, leading us to want to help 
educate our student population to make wise decisions for their futures. Our 
principal was afraid of those facts presented before h im about teen pregnancy 
and divorce, and made an uneducated decision to censor the student paper. 
Little did any of us know at that point in time in May of 1 983 where that decision 
would lead us. It is hard to imagine that his decision thirty plus years ago would 
have snowballed into a landmark decision sti l l  affecting our students of all ages 
today. 

It is troublesome for me as a parent of a high school journalist to hear my own 
son come home and tell me his paper is not allowed to cross a threshold of some 
topics because of the Hazelwood decision. I guess things have really come ful l 
circle to see this affecting my children today. It is my hope that more states wil l  
work towards passing anti-Hazelwood laws or  student expression b i l ls such as 
the case here so that we as a country can do a better job of educating our 
students in  the future and g iving them a clearer picture of real l ife issues and to 
put a stop to censorship. 



Testimony of Kent State University (in absentia) 
Center for Scholastic Journal ism 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wall  New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

The Center for Scholastic Journalism at Kent State University offers its support 
for the John Wal l New Voices Act , proposed legislation intended to strengthen 
the free expression and free press rights of high school and col lege students in 
the state of North Dakota. 

As a nat ional clearinghouse with information for and about student journalists and 
their advisers, a research center on issues affecting scholastic media, an 
educator of journalism teachers and an advocate for student press freedom and 
the First Amendment, the Center understands the devastating impact censorship 
can have on young people's appreciation for fundamental First Amendment 
values. We believe this proposed legislation will help North Dakota schools 
produce more dedicated and ethical journal ists as well as more engaged citizens. 

The Center for Scholastic Journalism is a project of the School of Journalismand 
Mass Communication at Kent State University in Kent, Ohio. It is supported by 
an endowment from the John S. and James L. Knight Foundation . 

Mark Goodman 
Professor and Knight Chair in Scholastic Journalism 
Center for Scholastic Journalism 
E-mai l :  mgoodm1 0 @ kent.�gu 
Office : 330-672-6239 

Center for Scholastic Journalism 
School of Journalism and Mass Communication 
Kent State University 
201 D Franklin  Hal l  
P .O. Box 51 90,  550 Hi l ltop Drive 
Kent, OH 44242-0001 
htt ://www.kent.edujj_m_g 
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Testimony of JEA Board of Directors (in absentia) 
Journalism Education Association 

North Dakota House Education Committee 
HB 1 471 , The John Wall  New Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

The Journalism Education Assoeiation, the largest organization in  the country for 
journal ism teachers and student media advisers, endorses the New Voices Act 
proposed by North Dakota educators for the 201 5  legislative session. Such an 
endorsement reflects our m ission and beliefs, i ncluding active defense of First 
Amendment freedoms and journalistic responsibil ities. The Act's purpose - to 
restore and preserve student expression at both the secondary and collegiate 
levels - is an integral part of learning that must go on in our schools. Allowing 
students to make content decisions and be in charge of their own media lets 
them practice critical thinking, researching , interviewing, writing,  editing and 
creating visuals while col laborating with other staffers to produce a product for an 
audience. Students also learn how a free and responsible press can improve 
their  school communities by informing, entertain ing and influencing their 
audience. They model civics in action so not only the student journalists see how 
democracy works, but also those who read and view their media. The New 
Voices Act has a sound educational foundation that wil l  benefit North Dakota 
students far beyond their journalism newsrooms. 

2.J 



Education Week magazine just this morning published my column and a companion piece 
by censored Pennsylvania student editor Gillian McGoldrick, in case you are interested. I 
will paste the text of my column below. 

http://www.edweek.org/ew/articles/2015/02/18/dont-silence-young­
j ournalists.html ?qs=LoMonte 
http://www.edweek.org/ew/articles/2015/02/ 18/my-hi gh-school-mascot-is-offensive.html 

In Illinois, a student editor's plan to engage teens in the local school board election by 

hosting an online candidate forum on the website of the student newspaper is scuttled when 

her superintendent cancels the forum, explaining : "Too much could go wrong ." 

In New Jersey, a student editor is forb idden from publishing a story about multiple 

employee grievances filed against her district's superintendent, a fact publicly aired at a 

school board meeting covered only by high school reporters . The principal tells the editor 

that "personnel issues" are categorically off-limits for student publications. 

I n Wisconsin , a student editor is punished for a searingly candid magazine article 

interviewing survivors of sexual assault. It's an article hailed by experts in the field as 

sensitively done journalism of professional caliber, but which her superintendent considers 

" inappropriate" fo r teen readers. 

These students share two qualities with Gillian McGoldrick, who has suffered withering 

attacks-up to and including a threat of criminal charges-from a school board bent on 

silencing her editorial crusade against her Pennsylvania high school's racially offensive 

mascot. 

Related: "My High School Mascot Is Offensive," (2015) 

These student j ournalists are all victims of a pervasive mentality elevating school image 

control over educationa l ualit . And they're all women . 

-iStockphoto 



Censors h i p  has a l ways been with us.  The Student Press Law Center was esta b l i shed i n  

res ponse t o  a g ro u nd b rea k i n g  study,  "Ca ptive Voices, " which concl uded 40 yea rs a g o  that 

j o u rn a l i s m  stu dents and teachers were being d riven from the newsroom by a d m i n i strative 

censors h i p - "the fu ndamenta l cause of the triv ia l ity, i n nocuousness, a nd u n i formity that 

cha racterize the h i g h  school press . "  

But i n  rece nt yea rs, K- 1 2  school a d m i nistrators have become u n a pologetica l l y  heavy­

ha nded in reta l iati ng for speech that may provoke controversy or reflect u nfavora b l y  on the 

school 's i mage.  Dispro portion ately, because student jou rna l i s m  is i ncreasingly  a fem a l e­

d o m i n ated activity, those bea ri ng the i m pact a re young women-women l i ke Kyl i e  S posato 

of Pem berton Townsh i p ,  N . J .  When Ms. S posato tried to p u b l i sh a co l u m n  decrying lax 

enfo rcement of her h igh school 's a nti-smoking pol icies, her pr incipal  vetoed the a rticle, 

re m oved a j o u rn a l ism teacher with 20 yea rs of p rofessional  newspa per experience, ca nceled 

the news-writing c lass, and o rdered the stude nts not to w rite a bout being censored . 

When schools a re cha l l enged over the m i suse of censo rs h i p  a uthority, they i nva ria bly fa l l  

back on t h e  sa me ti red rationa l ization : The l a w  a l l ows it.  

With na rrow exceptions, that's probably tru e .  I n  a 1 988 ru l i ng,  Hazelwood School 

Districtv . Kuhlmeier, the U . S .  S u p reme Cou rt d ivested stu dents of m ea n ingfu l  Fi rst 

Amen d m e nt p rotection when they use a school -su bsid ized outl et to convey a m essage.  

But " it's leg a l "  is n ot a j u stificati on . Schools hold students and teachers to a sta n d a rd of 

opti m a l  behavior, not m i n i ma l l y  l ega l l y  com p l iant behavio r. J ust ask the teachers who 've 

been fi red for g ri p i n g  a bo u t  their  su pervisors or sharing racy ph otos on Faceboo k .  " Poor 

j ud g ment" i s  reg u l a rl y  reg a rded as a fi ri ng offense, except when you ' re a p ri nci pa l ,  and the 

"j u d g ment" i n vo lves your stu dents' rig h ts.  

Schools d o  not serve l u nches with a n  eyed ropper to m a ke su re that no stud ent receives one 

ca l o rie m o re than the m i n i m u m  to stave off starvati o n .  Yet many a p po rtion free-expression 

rig hts i n  exactly that way, enfo rcing pol icies cri bbed stra i g ht from J ustice By ron 

W h i te's Hazelwood o p i n i o n ,  which sets the fl oor for the least p rotection the law a l l ows . State 

school boa rds' a ssociations even pu b l i sh Hazelwood- based " model "  po l icies, as if  " ba rely 

l eg a l "  were a n  ideal  to a s p i re to . 

The p u b l i c  is entitled to expect schools to a i m  for a sta ndard h i g her than "the worst th i ng 

we ca n d o  to kids a n d  get away with it. " Fed era l  law a l lows e m pl oyers to pay a $ 7 . 25 per 

h o u r  m i n i m u m  wage, b u t  we wou l d  not consider $290 a week t o  be " mod el"  

co m pensation for tea chers .  We wou ld rega rd it, accu rately,  as "one penny away from 

u n l awfu l . "  



.,.. 

" H ow schools treat t h e i r  yo u n g  j o u r n a l i sts matters beca use a news-l iterate p u b lic 

matte rs. "  

Debating whether censo ring the d i scussion of controversial  subjects i s  l eg a l  d i stracts from 

the q u estion that rea l ly m atters : whether it is ed ucational ly  responsible.  

D u ri ng 2 0 1 3 ,  the 25th a n n iversary of the Hazelwood ru l i n g ,  the nation 's la rgest 

o rg a n izations of p rofessional  j o u rn a l ists, col l ege j o u rnal ism ed u cators, a nd h i g h  school 

j o u r n a l i s m  a d vi sers a d opted resol utions cond e m n i ng rel i a nce on the Hazelwood sta n d a rd to 

s u p p ress the d iscussion of issues of p u b l ic conce rn .  An A u g u st 2 0 1 3  d ec l a ration from 

the Society of Profess i o n a l  J o u r n a l ists expla i ns that "it is wel l -docu m ented 

the Hazelwood ce nsors h i p  cla use i m pedes a n  ed ucator's a b i l ity to adequ ately i nstruct a nd 

tra i n  stu dents i n  p rofessional  journal istic values and practices, i n c l u d i ng the right to 

q uestion a uthority and i n vestigate performances of governance . "  

It's te m pting to say that principals and su peri ntendents shou l d n 't b e  second-guessed 

beca use they have d e m a n d i ng jobs. But it is a lways "easier" for govern ment offic ia ls  to 

i g n o re i nd i v i d u a l  rig hts. It would be "easier" to solve cri mes if suspects could be beaten u n ti l  

they confessed . Respecting constitutional  val ues mea ns d o i ng t h i ngs the h a rd way beca u se 

it is a l so the rig ht way . 

It ca n be tem pti n g ,  too, to tri v i a l i ze " h i g h  school journal ism" as u nworthy of a d u lts' conce rn . 

But we wou l d n 't m istreat and m i sed ucate stud ents i n  geometry cl ass a nd shrug it off a s  

"j ust a b u nch o f  h i g h  school math . "  

How schools treat their  you ng j o u rn a l ists matters because a news- l i te rate p u bl ic 

matters.  The Pew Resea rc h  Center re ported i n  2 0 1 3  that news readers h i p  had fa l len to 

h istoric l ows, with two-th i rds of America ns 34 a n d  younger reporti ng they read no d a i ly 

newspaper, a bout half  the rate of their  pa rents. B u i l d i n g  healthy news-consu m ption ha b its 

m ust beg i n  i n  schools, sta rt ing with news that's relevant and accessi ble to students' l i ves . 

It matters because stud ents a re the "em bedded j o u rna l ists" on w h ich the ent ire com m u n ity 

d e pends for rel iable i nformation a bout schools' shortcomings.  I mage-obsessed schools a re 

m a k i ng m ea n i ngfu l  news coverage m o re d ifficult than ever fo r the d w i n d l i ng ra n ks of 

newsro o m  p rofessionals .  In a su rvey of 190 jo u r n a l ists , released i n  M a rch by the 

Ed u cation W riters Associati o n ,  71 percent sa id they'd been b l ocked by m ed i a - re l ations 

officers from i nterviewi ng school e m ployees . 

MORE O P I N I O N  '' 
COMMENTARY '' 

Visit Opi nion . 



It matters because journalism, alone among school activities, teaches t he fi ve competencies 

that, according to a 2010 survey of 450 executives by the U.S. Chamber of 

Commerce, employers value most in new hires : ability to learn new skills, critica l th inking 

and problem-solving , teamwork, interpersonal-communication skills, and "ability to analyze 

and synthesize information. " This blueprint for a 21st-century-ready workforce reads li ke 

t he syllabus for Journalism 101. 

It matters more today t han ever, because t he precarious future of j ournalism depends on 

t he leadership of the strong, opin ionated young women whose voices schools are most 

determined to silence . 

I n September, Harvard 's Nieman Foundation released "Where Are the Women?"-a 

dismal study of gender diversity in media- wh ich reported that women represent j ust 35 

percent of newspaper supervisors, 31 percent of TV news directo rs, and 23 percent of radio 

news directors. The report, coincidentally, followed t he replacement of top female 

executives at The New York Times (executive ed itor Jill Abramson) and The Wash ington 

Post (publisher Katharine Weymouth) by men, giving the issue a sense of national urgency. 

Schools can 't be solely faulted for a complex societa l problem with many causes, but one of 

t he most avoidable contributing factors undoubtedly is t his one : Yea r after year, the female 

student in every high school who has been identified as having t he greatest potential as a 

business leader, the female student most adept at motivating employees, managing a 

budget, meeting deadlines, and handling customer complaints is told by her administration 

that she is a troublemaker who should keep her worthless opinions to herself. 

Frank D. LoMonte is a lawyer and the executive director of the Student Press Law Center, a 

Washington-based nonprofit advocate for the rights of student j ournalists. 

Frank D. LoMonte, Esq. 
Executive Director 
Student Press Law Center 
1608 Rhode Island Ave. NW, Suite 211 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
director@splc.org 
(202) 872-1704 
www.splc.org 
Please note our new address and phone number 
The Student Press law Center is an IRS 501 (c)(J) nonprofit, and tax-deductible contributions to support the SPLC's work can be made through a secure 
online connection at www.splc.org give . The Student Press law Center is a cerrified Combined Federal Campaign charity, No. 96157. 



Proposed by Rep. Mock 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

# 2-
lfB 1v1r 

·;z_( 1111 s 

Page 4, line 19, after the underscored period insert "The policy may also include limitations to language 

that could be defined as lewd, profane, harassing, threatening, intimidating, or defined as hate speech. "  

Renumber accordingly. 



Representing the Diocese of Fargo 
and the Diocese of Bismarck 

Christopher T. Dodson 

Executive Director and 

General Counsel 

-:tf,3 · 1 J �B ll-f 

To: House Judiciary Committee 

From : Chri stopher T. Dodson , Executive Di rector 

Subject: House B i l l  1 47 1 :  Student Ri ghts 

Date: February 1 7 , 20 1 5  

�nl 15 

The North Dakota Cathol i c  Conference opposes Section 2 of HB 1 47 1  as 

wri tten and would support an additional section to protect the rights of 

student cl ubs and organi zations at the publ ic institutions of hi gher 

education . 

Unl i ke Secti ons 1 and 3 of the bi l l ,  Section 2 appl ies to both publ ic and 

nonpub l i c  i n stitutions . Government should  not unduly i nte1t'ere with the 

pol i cies and practices of pri vate i nstitutions. The bi l l  has a subsection 

exempting i n sti tutions controlled by a rel i gious organization "to the extent 

the appl ication of thi s  section would not be consistent with the rel i gious 

tenets of the organization ." This exemption is not sufficient . First of al l ,  al l 

pri vate i nstituti ons should be exempt from state i nterference for any reason ,  

not j ust rel i g i ous i nstitutions for rel i gious reasons . Secondly, the provision 

i m permissibly invites courts to review the "rel igious tenets" of a rel igious 

organizati on - somethi n g  that is outsi de a secular court 's competence . 

For thi s reason , we propose amending Section 2 of the b i l l  to l imi t  i ts 

appl i cation to government i nstitutions of hi gher education . 

We also bel i eve that whi le this body i s  considering protecti ng the ri ghts of 

students at government-run i nstitutions i t  shoul d use the opportuni ty to 

protect the ri g hts of rel i gious and bel i ef-based student organi zations . 

1 03 S. 3rd St. ,  Suite I O  • B ismarck, ND 5850 1 

(70 I )  223-25 1 9 • 1 -888-4 1 9- 1 237 • FAX # (70 l )  223-6075 

http://ndcatholic.org • ndcathol ic@btinet.net 



Testimony on HB 14 71, page 2 

Throughout the country, col leges and universities are adopting "all -comers" policies . 

These policies state that a student organization cannot receive official recognition and ,  

therefore , have access t o  campus faci l i ties , assistance, and services , unless the 

organization accepts al l  students for membership and l eadership regardless of the 

student's agreement with the organi zation 's purpose . To put it another way, these pol icies 

requi re al lowing, for exampl e ,  a Musli m  student association to admit atheists , an anti­

Cathol i c  to be president of a Cathol i c  student group, or Klan members to take over an 

African-American student's group.  The use of these pol icies i n  state i nstitutions was 

upheld by the U .S .  Supreme Court with a 5-4 vote in Christian Legal Society v. Martinez, 
56 1 U .S . 66 1 (20 1 0) .  Since then , the implementation of these pol icies has prol iferated , 

forcing rel i gi ous organizations to l eave campuses.  

The ri ghts of students to form associations on public  col leges and universities based on 

s hared bel iefs is j ust as important as the rights of student journalists . The Legislative 

Assembly should take advantage of the opportunity presented by HB 1 47 1  to secure this 

ri ght at our state's institutions of hi gher education . 

We urge the committee to amend Section 2 of the bi l l  and add an amendment to protect 

the rights of student organizations . 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 2, line 23, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 4, line 4, replace "4." with "3..." 

Page 4, line 5, replace "5.. with "~" 

Page 4, line 7, replace "a_" with "5.." 

Page 4, after line 19, insert: 

"Section 4. A new section to chapter 15-1 O of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Religious and Belief-based organizations. 
An institution under the supervision of the state board of higher education may 
not discriminate against a religious or belief-based student organization with 
respect to a benefit available to any other student organization, based on that 
organization's requirement that its leaders or voting members adhere to the 
organization's viewpoints or sincerely held beliefs or be committed to furthering 
the organization's beliefs or religious missions." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Proposed by Rep. Mock 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 
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Page 4, line 19, after the underscored period insert "The policy may also include limitations to language 

that could be defined as lewd, profane, harassing, threatening, intimidating, or defined as hate speech." 

Renumber accordingly. 
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Page 2, line 23, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "a postsecondary educational institution" with "an institution 
under the supervision of the state board of higher education" 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 3 

Page 4, line 4, replace "~" with "3..." 

Page 4, line 5, replace ".5... with "~" 

Page 4, line 7, replace "Q,_" with ".5.." 

Page 4, after line 19, insert: 

"Section 4. A new section to chapter 15-1 O of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Religious and Belief-based organizations. 
An institution under the supervision of the state board of higher education may 
not discriminate against a religious or belief-based student organization with 
respect to a benefit available to any other student organization, based on that 
organization's requirement that its leaders or voting members adhere to the 
organization's viewpoints or sincerely held beliefs or be committed to furthering 
the organization's beliefs or religious missions." 

Renumber accordingly 



Proposed by Rep. Rohr 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 2, after line 19, insert: 

"5. Each school district shall adopt a written student freedom of expression policy in 

accordance with this section. The policy must include reasonable provisions for the 

time, place, and manner of student expression. "  

Renumber accordingly. 
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Iowa Student Free Expression Law 

Citation: Iowa Code Sec. 280.22 

May 11, 1989 

Summary: In addition to the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, states can provide 
additional free speech protection their own citizens by enacting state laws or regulations. The 
Iowa Student Free Expression Law is such a provision and provides student journalists attending 
Iowa public high schools with added protection against administrative censorship. 

Section 280.22 - Student exercise of free expression 
1. Except as limited by this section, students of the public schools have the right to exercise 
freedom of speech, including the right of expression in official school publications. 

2. Students shall not express, publish, or distribute any of the following: 

a. Materials which are obscene. 

b. Materials which are libelous or slanderous under chapter 659. 

c. Materials which encourage students to do any of the following: 

(1) Commit unlawful acts. 

(2) Violate lawful school regulations. 

(3) Cause the material and substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the school. 
-. 

3. There shall be no prior restraint of material prepared for official school publications except 
when the material violates this section. 

4. Each board of directors of a public school shall adopt rules in the form of a written 
publications code, which shall include reasonable provisions for the time, place, and manner of 
conducting such activities within its jurisdiction. The board shall make the code available to the 
students and their parents. 

?/17/?0l:'i 12:45 PM 
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5. Student editors of official school publications shall assign and edit the news, editorial, and 
feature content of their publications subject to the limitations of this section. Journalism advisers 
of students producing official school publications shall supervise the production of the student 
staff, to maintain professional standards of English and journalism, and to comply with this 
section. 

6. Any expression made by students in the exercise of free speech, including student expression 
in official school publications, shall not be deemed to be an expression of school policy, and the 
public school district and school employees or officials shall not be liable in any civil or criminal 
action for any student expression made or published by students, unless the school employees or 
officials have interfered with or altered the content of the student speech or expression, and then 
only to the extent of the interference or alteration of the speech or expression. 

7. "Official school publications" means material produced by students in the journalism, 
newspaper, yearbook, or writing classes and distributed to the student body either free or for a 
fee. 

8. This section does not prohibit a board of directors of a public school from adopting otherwise 
valid rules relating to oral communications by students upon the premises of each school. 

For More Information: Iowa secondary students should also see: 

Iowa Dept. of Education's Model Student Publications Code (PDF File - 447K)(Requires Adobe 
Acrobat Reader) .  Also includes model policies for advertising acceptance and non-school­
sponsored (underground) student·publication distribution. 
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Testimony of Rep. Alex Looysen, 01 2 
North Dakota Senate Education Committee 

H B  1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 
March 1 8, 201 5 

Good morning Chairman Flakoll and members of the Senate Education 
Committee. For the record, my name is Alex Looysen ,  representative of District 
1 2  in Jamestown. House bi l l  1 471 started as a class project at the U niversity of 
Jamestown. The students researched current state and national laws affecting 
student journal ists and created a rough draft of their findings. After that, several 
people, i ncluding some that wil l  speak after me, continued their work and house 
bi l l  1 471  is the result of all that hard work. In general , this is a bipartisan bi l l  that 
addresses freedom of speech and press for student journalists and their 
advisors. I know there are several people here today to testify that have a lot 
more knowledge on this bil l than I do, so in the interest of time Mr. Chairman I 
would ask that the committee hold their questions for those testifying after me. 

Thank you .  
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Looysen 

March 13, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, remove lines 15 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 J1 15.0825.02001 
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15.0825.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for -0 /I B { 15 
Representative Looysen 

March 18, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove" , 15-18.1," 

Page 2, line 15, remove "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint of any 
school-sponsored media" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 27 with "A student enrolled in an institution under the 
supervision of the state board of higher education may commence a civil action to 
obtain damages under this section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as 
determined by a court for a violation of subsection 2, the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution, or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North Dakota." 

Page 2, remove lines 28 and 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 26, after "6." insert "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 
guardian may commence a civil action to obtain damages under this 
section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as determined by a 
court for a violation of this section, the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution , or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North 
Dakota. 

L " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 JI 15.0825.02002 
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Testimony of Steven Listopad 
Assistant Professor/Student Media Director, Valley City State University 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wal l New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5 

Thank you Rep. Looysen, and thank you Chairman Flakoll and members of the 
Senate Education Committee for hearing our testimony today. 

I 'm Steve Listopad, assistant professor of journalism and student media director 
at Valley City State University. Previously I was at the University of Jamestown 
for 1 1  years. Before my career as a journalism educator, I was a journalism 
student and student journal ist at North Dakota State University and North Dakota 
State College of Science. And even before that, I was a student journalist at 
Wahpeton High School and reporter for The Daily News. From 1 991 to 1 995, I 
spent every day of school learning about the how's and why's of journalism from 
the most amazing teacher, mentor and coach I have ever known - John Wal l .  

I t  is such a great honor to be here today. To look around the room and see so 
many passionate and intel l igent students, educators and professionals engaged 
in such a worthwhile civic activity is truly heartwarming. Just over a month after 
the House and Senate so overwhelmingly passed the mandatory civics test, to 
have this opportun ity to turn civic knowledge into civic action with our students 
makes me believe that, no matter the outcome, these years of work have been 
worth it. This is truly a great moment for all us. 

Today, you are going to hear from a variety of stakeholders in support of HB 
1 471 - The John Wall New Voices Act. You are going to hear from journalism 
advisers and their students. You are going to hear from professional journalists. 
You are going to hear from national leaders and experts on the subject. And the 
reason you're going to hear from us is because we can speak to you - that's the 
First Amendment in action. But not all North Dakota students are as lucky as 
those in this room. Not all students in this state are allowed to speak to you. Just 
over a month ago, I called a high school newspaper adviser in  our state to let 
them know about the John Wall New Voices Act. I had hopes that the adviser 
would be able to share the information with the students and that, at the very 
least, the students would be interested in doing a story on the bi l l .  I barely got 
through the first sentence when I was cut off. The adviser told me the students 
working for that particular newspaper in that particular school d istrict could not 
report on anything political . That could've been the end of the conversation. But I ,  
and the rest of the supporters of the John Wall New Voices Act, wi l l  carry on that 
very important conversation right here, today. A conversation about the 
fundamental expression rights of our young people, about the failure of the 
Hazelwood Supreme Court decision as an educational standard for student 



journalists, about the need for student journalists to be civically engaged - not 
just for them, but for all of us, and about how we can make North Dakota a better 
place for the new voices emerg ing everyday to learn, grow and engage. 

The John Wall New Voices Act was conceived at the University of Jamestown as 
a class project in  the spring of 201 3. UJ is a private school yet President Robert 
Badal has supported his students, faculty and this bi l l  from the very beginning. 
The UJ students that wrote this bi l l  not only sought to codify their own expression 
rights into law, but to protect those rights for all students in our state. I am so 
proud of them, and I am honored to help carry the torch as they have moved into 
their careers. 

The John Wall New Voices Act, as originally presented to the House, would do 
three things : It wi l l  Restore the Tinker Standard in our public h igh  schools -
negating the Hazelwood decision . It wil l Protect our public col leges from the 
encroachment of Hazelwood to higher education via the 2005 Hosty v. Carter 
decision. And it wi l l  Extend the First Amendment freedoms journalism and 
journalists need to private colleges, similar to California's Leonard Law. All of the 
background research leading to this bi l l ,  including simi lar bi l ls passed in other 
states, can be found on the bi l l 's website - www.newvoicesnd.com. It's important 
to note that the th ird goal related to private colleges has been amended out of the 

(-_ version you now hold. _ 
Gene Policinski , executive d irector of the Newseum and First Amendment 
Institute said, "We are creating a generation that takes no for an answer." With 
the John Wall New Voices Act, we have a chance to do something about it. I 
know that Mr. Wall followed the Tinker Standard, which says that there must be 
evidence of substantial disruption to justify censorship. I know because I lived his 
principles every day for four years of my l ife. I am so g lad that Margaret Wal l  
could be here today. Mr. Wall 's students from his 30 years as a journalism 
educator will be carrying on his values and bringing his lessons to future 
generations. This bi l l  is one more invaluable lesson from Mr. Wal l. Hazelwood 
was only a few years old when I first met Mr. Wal l .  Even in the new Hazelwood 
environment, Mr. Wall allowed us to take on stories of corruption and 
embezzlement in our schools. And now at a high school in our state, 27 years 
after the Hazelwood decision, our students don't even have the right to report on 
this bi l l  - a bi l l  about them, for them, and by them. And that h igh school is 
certainly not alone. Hazelwood's deleterious effects can be felt all across the 
state at every level : school boards, principals and advisers pul l ing stories, cutting 
budgets, stopping the presses, firing advisers, and cutting whole programs just to 
exercise a measure of control that is both invasive and ineffective. The two high 
schools you'l l  hear from today, Bismarck Century and West Fargo, are in  the 
minority. These high schools honor the values of journalism education and civic 
life by respecting their students' right to choose the stories that are important to (_ 
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them. The accolades, the scholarships, and the careers that come from this 
effective educational method are testimony to its efficacy. And the fact that this 
room is ful l  of those students is testimony to the civic responsibil ity that is 
ingrained in students that we allow to own their words. 

This is tru ly a great day. 

Next you're going to hear from Frank LoMonte, executive director of the Student 
Press Law Center, and one of the leading national experts on law pertaining to 
student journalists. Mr. LoMonte is one of the best people in the country to 
answer the questions concerning how this bi l l  wi l l  work and how it wi l l  affect us. 

But first I want to thank al l the supporters of the John Wall New Voices Act, 
including, but not l imited to : the bi l l 's sponsors, representatives Looysen, Haak, 
Mock, and Becker, and senators Grabinger and Luick. The North Dakota Council 
of Educational Leaders who came to the House Education Committee to oppose 
this bi l l ,  but stood up to support it instead. The School Boards of Bismarck and 
Jamestown who voted to support this bi l l .  The North Dakota Newspaper 
Association and its membership. The Forum and The Tribune for writing editorial 
endorsements of the bi l l .  The Journalism Education Association and the Northern 
Interscholastic Press Association. President Badal and The U niversity of 
Jamestown. Mary Beth Tinker, Cathy Kuhlmeier Frey, Frank LoMonte and the 
Student Press Law Center. The journalism department at Kent State University 
and College Media Association. Al l the national organizations that have passed 
resolutions to support bi l ls just l ike this one. Al l  the states that have tried and 
succeeded and tried and failed to pass bi l ls just l ike this one. All the educators, 
administrators, and professionals in North Dakota and beyond who have reached 
out to us with advice and support. The six students that started al l of this: Peter 
Odney, Masaki Ova, Dan Arens, Jessee Boyle, Ashley Domino and the late Josh 
Berg .  Those six, and all the students you see in this room today, and all the 
students across this state are the New Voices. We need to teach them about 
civic facts, but we also need to teach them about civic engagement. We don't 
want the new voices in our world retreating to the dark recesses of the Internet to 
have important conversations. We want those conversations to happen in the 
l ight of day, where they can be cared for and nurtured - l ike Mr. Wall did for me 
and so many others. Our New Voices - We need to hear what they have to say -
we need to hear what they ALL have to say. And only HB1 471 , the John Wal l 
New Voices Act, can make that happen . 

Thank you.  
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Testimony of Cathy Kuhlmeier Frey 

Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier 
H.B. No. 1471-The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 18, 2 0 1 5  

Good morning, Senate Education Committee Members. M y  name i s  Cathy Kuhlmeier Frey. 
I am the Cathy Kuhlmeier of Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier, and in a roundabout sort of way, the 
reason we are here today. 

I n  the fall of 1 982, I was a student at Hazelwood East H S  in Journalism I, learning what it 
meant to be a j ournalist from a very dedicated teacher. He taught us about Tinker v. Des 

Moines and prior restraint. Little did I know how very important those things would 
become to m e. 

In the spring of 1 983,  I was the layout editor of the Spectrum, Hazelwood East's student 
produced newspaper publication. As a group we had decided to update some previously 

produced story topics at East about the problems of teenagers s uch as teen pregnancy, 

runaways, marriage and divorce, but under the direction of a different principal. In  the 
pregnancy article, we interviewed three different girls out of a relatively large population 
of pregnant teens at my school. Mind you, Hazelwood East was a very large school in St. 

Louis. We got the girls different viewpoints of what it was like to be pregnant in high 
school. We got their parents' consent to run what the girls were saying, along with 
changing everyone's name so to protect their identities. I n  the divorce article, we talked to 
students whose parents were divorced, I being one of them and gave accounts of that. 

Again, we were taught by our advisor the key importance to accuracy and fair reporting. 
We had obtained the parents written consent of what the students were stating in this 

story also. I f  there was an objection to a statement, it could have been changed. The 

runaway story included hot line numbers for kids to call if they were considering running 
away. The articles were intended to be helpful to our student population to hopefully make 

informed decisions about sex or running away. We fully believed we were acting as 

responsible j ournalists. 

During the spring of that year, our advisor left and another one stepped in from our sister 
school to help out with the final phase of publication. We found out after the fact that it 

was his practice to take the paper to the principal at his school for review. Our principal 
objected to some of the articles and did not allow them to be printed, without giving us any 

opportunity to make changes-or what I knew as prior restraint. We had j ust learned that 
this wasn't ok and that students do not shed their rights at the school house gate, the 

Tinker standard. We didn't understand why this happened. 

We chose to take a stand against the decision and contacted the ACLU at the advice or our 
previous advisor. The ACLU was very interested in what was going on and took the case. 

We were contacted by all sources of media to speak and make appearances. On my return 

to school after one such appearance on a show that was broadcast nationally, I was called 

into the principal's office and told I was not to do that again, and if I did not personally ask 
his permission prior to missing school again, he could expel me. He then began to check up 



on me regularly to make sure I wasn't skipping classes and was doing what I was supposed 

to do. I was never the "bad kid", I was in the honor society and involved in many 
extracurricular activities. I didn't deserve to be treated like this. 

The case picked up speed and made its way to the US Supreme Court and we were 

represented by an attorney that I feel did not do our case j ustice and bring out important 

facts such as the story ideas had been previously published or that we had spoken with the 

parents for consent. 

We weren't ever given the chance to learn what it's like to be a real j ournalist; instead we 

were told the stories were too mature for an immature audience by our principal. My 

response was if you're old enough to get pregnant, shouldn't you be old enough to read 

about it. 

I had never expected that this would turn into everything that it has over the years and that 

I would be part of history. We weren't trying to change the world; we simply wanted to 

help p roduce stories to maybe help our friends at school to make educated decisions. The 

decision against us in January of 1 988 took away the rights of student j ournalists stating 

that prior restraint does not apply to the p ublication of student operated school 

newspapers. 

I had wanted to have a career in j ournalism, and through the process of this case, it gave me 

a very bad taste as to what it might be like as a professional journalist so the world is less 

one person who might have been a darn good one. How many others like me are out there 

because they felt the same way? Let's put a stop to this. 

Please j oin me in your support of H ouse Bill 1471 to restore student free speech and a free 

scholastic p ress. Cure H azelwood. 

Thank you for your time 

Cathy Kuhlmeier Frey 
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Testimony of Frank D. LoMonte 
Executive Director, Student Press Law Center 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
HB 1471, The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 18, 2015 

It is a distinct honor to be invited to share information about the law governing the 
rights of student journalists with the Committee. Since 197 4, the nonprofit Student Press 
Law Center has been the leading source of information about legal issues of importance 
to the student media. The attorneys of the SPLC publish the widely used reference text, 
Law of the Student Press (41

h ed. 2013), recognized as the nation's most comprehensive 
compendium of legal research about student media. Our free attorney hotline receives 
some 2,000 requests for assistance every year from students and educators in all 50 
states. The SPLC was established to assist students facing institutional roadblocks when 
they seek to gather information and share ideas. 

Student journalism is essential to educated, civically aware communities 

Student media is one of the most popular extracurricular activities in schools 
everywhere. While no comprehensive "census" of student journalism exists, researchers 
at Kent State University conducted an instructive survey of 4,000 public high schools 
across America in 2011 and found that 96 percent offered at least one student media 
outlet (print, online or broadcast). There are more than 1_1,000 student newspapers in 
public high schools alone, outnumbering professional newspapers by 3,000. By far, the 
majority of journalists in America work on school and college campuses, not in salaried 
professional positions. 

Americans have never in their history been more dependent on students to bring 
them the news on which they rely. According to a July 2014 study published by the Pew 
Research Center, at least 14 percent of all of the journalists covering state Capitols are 
students, and in four states (Arizona, Kansas, Missouri and Nevada) student journalists 
actually outnumber salaried professionals. The Knight Foundation has called on college 
journalism programs to re-imagine themselves as "teaching hospitals," serving the basic 
information needs of their communities in the same way that medial schools use medical 
students to serve communities' health-care needs. 

Coverage of education issue is especially reliant on the work of students, because 
the number of full-time education reporters has dwindled alarmingly. In a December 2009 
study ("Invisible: 1.4 Percent for Education is Not Enough"), the Brookings Institution 
found that only 1.4 percent of mainstream news coverage (print, broadcast and online) is 
devoted to education, and most is crisis-driven (campus violence, disease outbreaks) 
and not about education policy issues. As part of the solution, the Brookings report called 
for an end to school censorship of student journalism: "Some school officials discourage 
student reporters from asking difficult questions or raising controversial issues. In fact, 
student journalism of this kind should be encouraged. Student newspapers often lead the 
media to important education stories." 

Student Press Law Center 1608 Rhode Island Ave. NW, Suite 211 Washington , D.C. 20036 
www.splc.org splc@splc.org (202) 785-5450 
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The Supreme Court's Hazelwood ruling has damaged the quality of education 

Every authoritative group involved in journalism education and training has gone 
on record condemning the level of school control contemplated by the Supreme Court's 
1988 ruling in Hazelwood School District v. Kuhlmeier as educationally unsound. During 
2013, the 251

h anniversary of the Hazelwood decision, resolutions calling for schools and 
colleges to cease reliance on Hazelwood were unanimously enacted by the Society of 
Professional Journalists (SPJ), the Journalism Education Association (JEA), and the 
Association for Education in Journalism and Mass Communication (AEJMC). These are 
the largest organizations in the country representing, respectively, working professional 
journalists, high school journalism educators, and college journalism educators. The 
wording of the SPJ resolution exemplifies the sentiments: "[l]t is well-documented the 
Hazelwood censorship clause impedes an educator's ability to adequately instruct and 
train students in professional journalistic values and practices, including the right to 
question authority and investigate performances of governance." 

Laws protecting student press freedom are proven to be safe and effective 

The Constitution provides a floor, not a ceiling, on the rights that state and local 
governments may extend to their citizens. Seven states (Arkansas, California, Colorado, 
Iowa, Kansas, Massachusetts and Oregon) statutorily provide students enhanced press 
freedom above the minimum recognized by the Supreme Court in Hazelwood. 1 Three 
other jurisdictions - the District of Columbia, Pennsylvania and Washington - do so by / 
way of State Board of Education regulation. The combined experience of these 10 states 
with legislatively mandated press freedom exceeds 175 years; in all of that time, there 
has not been a single reported case of a school or college being successfully sued over 
material published in a student news outlet. A study published in 2013 in the Maine Law 
Review could find only six instances - three in California, two in Massachusetts and one 
in Iowa - in which a student free-press statute had ever been raised in litigation. The 
experience of these states is that, by clarifying the bounds of school censorship authority, 
such statutes avoid more litigation than they enable. 

Reversing the impact of the Supreme Court's 1988 Hazelwood ruling merely 
restores the sensible balance that existed before 1988 - the standard set by the Court in 
Tinker v. Des Moines Independent Community School District {1968). Under Tinker, the 
school may prevent or punish speech that threatens a "substantial disruption" of school 
activities - something more than just a strong exchange of differing opinions. Tinker is far 
from being an "anything goes" standard - in fact, it is the standard that applies today to 
students' T-shirts, hairstyles and other "non-curricular" forms of speech, to which schools 
have become accustomed over the last 47 years. Rolling back Hazelwood merely gives a 
student the same (limited) level of First Amendment protection on the editorial page that 
she has on the T-shirt she wears to school. 

1 Illinois protects only college and not high-school journalists. See 11 O ILCS 13/1 ("the 
College Campus Press Act"). 

Student Press Law Center 1608 Rhode Island Ave . NW, Suite 211 Washington , D.C. 20036 
www.splc.org splc@splc.org (202) 785-5450 
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Testimony of Steve Andrist 
Executive Director, North Dakota Newspaper Association 

Before the North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
re: HB 1 47 1  -- The John Wall New Voices Act 

Chairman Flakoll and members of the committee: My name is Steve Andrist, and 
as executive director of the North Dakota Newspaper Association I represent the 
79 weekly and 1 0  daily newspapers in the state. 

The NDNA Government Relations Committee and the NDNA Board of Direc­
tors have both adopted resolutions in support of HB 1 47 1 ,  and this week the 
National Newspaper Asso ciation, meeting in Washington will do likewise. Here's 
why. 

Journalism, and newspapers in particular, is alive and well, especially in North 
Dakota. We know from research conducted last year that more than 83 percent of 
North Dakota adults regularly read a local newspaper. Whether in print or on a 
device, they are reading content generated by j ournalists working for newspapers. 

Like most industries, newspapers see our youth as our future. For that reason 
we have been putting more and more of our resources i nto educating both h igh 
school and college j ournalists through scholarships, i nternships and fellowships. 

We certainly wouldn't teach j ournalism without giving students access to com­
puters and mobile devices. Nor should we teach j ournalism without giving stu­
dents the same rights to free speech and government transparency as those af­
forded to professional j ournalists. 

HB 1 47 1  gives those tools to our students, to our state's future j ournalists, and 
therefore we respectfully request your favorable vote. 

Thank you. 
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Testimony of Katie Winbauer 

Editor for Bismarck State College's The Mystician 

H.B. No. 1471-The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 18, 2015 

Good morning chairman and committee, 

My name is Katie Winbauer and I'm an editor of Bismarck State College's 
newspaper, The Mystician. I was an editor of my high school newspaper and was an 

intern at the Bismarck Tribune during my senior year of high school. S ince the day I 

heard about this bill,  I 've been very interested in it and where it has the capabilities 
to go. 

I started to love j ournalism and what it could do for others when I was in 
the fourth grade and constructed my own classroom newspaper with the help of a 
couple friends. Then, in high school, I learned how to use my talent in the journalism 

classes that were offered. In  the first journalism class I took, I learned about court 
cases like Tinker vs. Des Moines, which assured students that First Amendment 

rights don't end at the school gate, and Hazelwood vs. Kuhlmeier, which granted a 

high school principal the right to censor two articles set to be published in the 
school newspaper. 

Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier interested me because I didn't understand why a 

principal would want to l imit journalism or why student j ournalism wasn't taken as 
seriously. It wasn't until two years after I learned about these cases, that I would be 

censored three separate times by the administration at the high school I attended. 
With this bill, that wouldn't have been able to happen. 

House B ill  1471 enables student journalists to have the same rights as all 
other journal ists. The skills that are developed for this make better adults in our 
communities. Without giving students the right to report in a valid outlet, they will 

use social media where things can happen anonymously and with no ethical 
standard. 

If I could go back a couple years to when I had valid stories be shut down 
by the administration, I wish I would have fought just a l ittle harder. I wish I could 
have convinced them to understand the importance of student journalism like I did. 

I encourage you to look at who this bill will hurt, which is no one, and to 

look at whom it will help, which is all student journalists in the state of North 
Dakota. Please don't let our rights end at the school gate. 
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Testimony of Baelee Zayde Butts 

General Manager of VCSU's Student Media Organziation 

Valley City State University, Valley City, North Dakota 

H.B. No. 1471-The John Wall New Voices Act 
March 18, 2 0 1 5  

First off I would like t o  thank you all for allowing m e  and many other well qualified 

and inspiring student j ournalists, journalism educators and supporters to speak on 
behalf of those not allowed to. 

My name is Baelee Butts and I am a senior, professional communications and media 
concentration major and the general manager of the student media organization at 

Valley City State University, Valley City, North Dakota. I also wrote for a college 
newspaper prior to VCSU at Augustana College in South Dakota. 

I have heard and witnessed numerous stories about censorship concerning college 
papers and what they are allowed to print in accordance with their school policies. 

While I understand that schools have a certain prestigious standard to uphold, what 

about upholding professional j ournalism standards and doing student j ournalists in 
our state j ustice by allowing them to report the truth? 

In one instance a student paper was fearful about running a story involving a college 

cheerleader who broke her back while in practice. The coach of the squad was an 
alumna. While the paper was not going to run the story to defame the name of the 
school, coach, or squad they did, however, want to exhibit honest reporting and 

have the community be aware of the dangers that accompany cheerleading. Once 
the article ran they were in full defense mode waiting to hear backlash for lack of 

censorship. Sitting in apprehension should not be something student j ournalists 
should have to do for simply reporting the truth. 

It is a common misconception that j ournalism is a dying art. M any are losing their 

jobs while the market changes and adapts to new technologies, but I am here to tell 
you that I have met more students in the past week willing to fight for journalism 

than you or I could have imagined. I attended a College M edia Association 

convention in N ew York City last week where 1500 students from around the nation 
gathered to discuss the obstacles we have run into with certain forms of censorship. 

Objective j ournalism is something younger generations won't have the pleasure of 
experiencing if we continue to push student journalism to the fringes and shadows 

of the I nternet. Why are we taking the pleasure of the morning paper with a cup of 

coffee away from them? Want us to read more books and get off our phones? Help 
us keep j ournalism alive by helping us speak the truth even if it  isn't pretty. There 

are laws, rules and guidelines already set in place and by teaching us to follow them 

in the l ight of day, educators can make sure students learn the difference between 

truth and l ibel. It is all a process and that process can be impacted immensely 
through your support. 



By not allowing student journalists the opportunity to publish what they have 
researched, we are not only taking from them their first amendment rights, but we 
are not allowing them precious work and civic experience. The best way to turn a 
student or employee off from their dreams is by breaking their spirits. Now, in some 
cases being told 'no, you cannot print this' only fuels the fires but in others it 
destroys their motivation and they move on. At VCSU, we are building a new student 
media program from scratch and we plan to incorporate freedom of speech and the 
press to allow students the right to their voice and to do their civic duties as 
journalists. Your support of this bill will strengthen these ideals in new and growing 
programs like the one at VCSU. 

Thank you for your time and support of this bill - future journalists will honor your 
decision here today by upholding the highest standards of journalism and reporting. 
Thank you again. 

( 

( ,_ 

l_ 



Testimony of Jeremy Murphy 
West Fargo High School Publications Adviser 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 

H.B. No. 1 4 7 1 - The John Wall New Voices Act 
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First, thank you to the chairman and committee members for allowing me to be a part of this 
process. I have been a journalism adviser for the last 1 0  years and a professional j ournalist before 
that. 

In my time in the classroom, I have witnessed students reach extraordinary goals because they 
strive to show their community members the unbelievable stories existing around them. Students 
have covered presidential candidates, national figures, popular bands, controversy, heartache, 
successes and everything in between. They have covered these events because they are 
passionate about providing readers with important stories - an opportunity that more students 
around the state would have with the passing of the John Wall New Voices Act. 

For the last few years, I have been fortunate enough to work as a publications adviser in a district 
that values student j ournalism. Students have flourished in this environment, starting a new 
broadcast program, working with district officials during open records requests, starting a literary 
magazine, visiting top state officials, collaborating with local media and winning numerous state 
and national awards and scholarships. All of which has been student-directed. 

It hasn't  always been that way in West Fargo. The national and state recognition was still there, 
but the supportive district officials were not. As an adviser, I encouraged a collaborative, 
student-run environment no different than the one we have today, but I was removed from my 
position. That is why this bill is so important to publications programs around the state. It  will 
provide all students with an opportunity to thrive and gain skills today' s  workforce deems 
necessary. 

As a forward-focused adviser, I ' m  looking for ways to allow students to practice skills that will 
give them the best opportunity to be successful in their future endeavors. The National 
Association of Colleges and Employers says the top skills employers want in new hires includes: 
critical thinking, communication, collaboration, time management, data analysis, technical 
knowledge, writing, editing and marketing skills. I have also had the opportunity to visit with 
multiple employers in the Fargo-Moorhead area and they echo these results. If you visit any of 
the top publications rooms in the state, you will see students practicing these skills in a real­
world, student run environment every single day. But currently, that environment is only possible 
in a supportive situation like we have in West Fargo. 

I have been on both sides of the spectrum, from a restrictive environment to an expressive one. If  
we really want students to  attain these skills and tell  great stories, this bi l l  is a necessary step in 
that direction. 



Testimony of Brittany Rheault 
University of Jamestown/West Fargo High School student journalist 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H.B. No. 1 471 - The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 20 1 5  

if \ \ 

G ood m o rn i ng a n d  thank you for taking the t ime today to hear testi mony i n  support of the John Wal l  

N ew Voices Act in  H ouse B i l l  147 1 .  My name is Brittany Rheault  a n d  I a m  the former Head Editor of  The 

P acker newspa per at West Fa rgo H igh School, staff member of The Col legian at the U n iversity of 

J a m estown, a n d  current e m p loyee of the J a m estown Sun newspaper. I am here as a representation of 

a l l  N orth Da kota student journ a l ists req uired to learn under the censorsh ip  laws that l i m it stud ents in  

their reporting a n d  writ ing experience. 

As a West Fa rgo H igh School a l u m n i  I had the privilege to head a stu d ent-run newspaper who did not 

practice censorship.  This meant that as the Head Editor I n eeded to show m y  staff m em bers how to be 

responsible journa l ists who could report i nspiring stories with integrity and profess ional ism.  Last year 

J i m  Jonas, a Packer footba l l  coach, was fired from his coach ing position .  The West Fa rgo H igh School a n d  

com m u n ity w a s  i n  an u proar o f  ra l l ies and social m e d i a  d iscussions concern ing the reason i ng behind h i s  

release. There w a s  a n  a b u n d a n ce o f  i nformation being released to try and j u stify the situation . Another 

student and I took o n  the story with the sole pu rpose of uncovering on ly the facts. Because we a re not 

censored at West Fa rgo, we had the freedom to pursue this story with out constra int, a l lowing us to fi le  

for open records requests, set  u p  interviews with the superintendent a n d  even Jonas h i mself. With th is  

freedom, we learned h ow to be professional  journal ists, were treated as such,  a n d  reported with the 

i ntegrity and responsibly of professional  journal ists. Th rough this experience a n d  many others s imi lar  to 

it ,  I was prepared entering i nto col lege journal ism a n d  the professional  journal is m  setting at the 

J a m estown S u n .  One thing I have learned is that when you enter col lege you are expected to present 

yourself professiona l ly  a n d  a re treated as such.  If you do not act as a professional,  you will not be taken 

seriously. I a m  grateful I had the professional  environment in  h igh school to learn these ski l ls  so I could 

fi nd su ccess in  col lege. This type of censorshi p-free environm ent provided m e  with the opportu n ities to 

learn how to cond u ct an in-depth interview, present myself as a professional ,  ta lk  to people of great 

auth ority a n d  dea l  with sensitive issues i n  a respectful way. I ca n a ssure you that if we were censored I 

wou l d  not have been nearly as confident to express my opin ions in the col l ege setti ng, as we l l  as 

i nterview for a job i n  the profession al  journa l ism setting at the J a m estown S u n .  

I w a n t  a l l  N orth Da kota students t o  have the type o f  learning environment t h a t  I had the privil ege to 

experience. Censorsh ip  prod u ces sub-par journa l ists who can write a s imple n ews a rtic le.  Freedom from 

censorship produces journal ists who a re passion ate in reporting a story that inspires its readers through 

sharing the experiences a n d  words of others. Therefore, the passing of the New Voices Act wi l l  provide a 

slew of opportun ities to better prepare the youth in d evel oping responsible reporting ski l ls, a n d  once 

given the freedom, help them to understa n d  the im porta nce of reporting with i ntegrity and 

professiona l is m .  The passing of this bil l  wi l l  push stud ents to further u n d erstand i n-de pth journal ism a n d  

' \� 



responsible reporting. Therefore, I u rge the comm ittee to support the New Voices Act. It wil l surely 

m a ke a positive ed ucationa l  difference i n  the l ives of student journalists, and the future reporters of o u r  

generation .  

• 

• 

• 



Testimony of Sue Skalicky 

Bismarck Public Schools journalism educator 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 

H.B. No. 1 471  - The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 2015 

Good morning chairman and members of the committee. My name is Sue Skalicky and I am a 

journalist, and have been one for over 25 years. I have been a high school journalism teacher for 

almost ten years. But, one of the most rewarding things I have ever done professionally is to 

advise high school publications. Over the past ten years, I have witnessed teenagers wrestle with 

making decisions in the classroom, decisions that will have a public impact. And, instead of 

telling them what to do, I 've asked them to recall what they've learned about their First 

Amendment rights and the responsibilities that come with those rights. In the end, it has been 

thrill ing to watch them wrestle with options, discuss the impact of each option, and decide how 

to move forward. 

I believe the best place to find a high school student with a love for learning, top-notch critical 

thinking skills, an innate interest in humanity, a burden to seek out the truth and inform the 

masses, a desire to affect positive change in the world, a habit of working above and beyond 

what is expected, and a knack for working collaboratively on fast-paced, multi-faceted proj ects 

would be in the high school newsroom. These students, who WILL change the world, won't 

necessarily pursue a post-secondary degree or career in journalism. That ' s  because they aren't  

being groomed for the field of journalism. They are being encouraged, equipped and empowered 

to be world changers in myriad fields and trades by high school journalism advisers who use the 

production and publication of newspapers and yearbooks to hone critical thinking, collaboration, 

communication and creativity - 2 1 st Century skills. But, in order to do that, these students need 

to have the freedom to do so. 

Even the threat of censorship hinders student free speech and a free scholastic press, because the 

students aren't allowed to explore every possibility. Instead, they are spending their time and 

energy trying to contain their thoughts and ideas within the boundaries of a lesson, the only 

impact being that on their GPA. Students with First Amendment freedoms natural ly collaborate, 

think critically, exercise creativity, and communicate professionally, because they are motivated 

to make a difference in matters important to them, their peers, and their community. 

I ask you today to invest in the future of these students by voting for the John Wall New Voices 

Act. 

Thank you! 

Sue Skalicky 
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Bismarck Public Schools student journalist 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 

H.B. No. 1 4 7 1  - The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 20 1 5  

Good morning, Senate Education Committee Members. My name is Faith Harron, and I am a 

sophomore at Century High School. There, I work on the staff of the Century Star, our school 

newspaper. In addition, I am a reporter with the Bismarck Tribune, writing both articles and 

briefs. As a student, this bill affects me as well as my peers around the state. 

The First Amendment gives us five rights: peaceful assembly, press, speech, religion, and the 

right to petition the government. According to the 1 969 case of Tinker v. Des Moines, "Students 

do not shed their First Amendment rights at the schoolhouse gate." However, that ruling was 

overturned in the 1 988 case of Hazelwood v. Kuhlmeier, when it was established that 

administrators have the abil ity to censor student writing. Unfortunately, this violates a student's  

First Amendment rights. 

First Amendment rights are essential. Imagine if the government told you what religion to 

fol low. With fewer freedoms, North Dakota would begin to resemble a dictatorship. Or if the 

right to peaceably assemble was revoked-this meeting here would be illegal. If free press 

weren't  included, events the government wanted to hide could easily be masked, such as the 

censored Internet searches in China. 

For the past few months, I have worked at the Bismarck Tribune, the city's  paper. There, I have 

all my First Amendment rights. At the Tribune, I would never be censored. Fortunately, I belong 

to the Bismarck Public School District, where the practice of administrator censorship, or prior 
restraint, does not exist. The content of our publication, the Century Star, is not censored. But 

this is not a guarantee. I f  the administration shifted and a new superintendent wanted to employ 

prior restraint, we would have to comply. The John Wall New Voices Act is here to prevent this. 

The bill will not j ust let students do "whatever they want." It includes accepted guidelines for 

free student speech, restricting slander, obscenity and lewdness, among others. 

The freedom of speech and First Amendment rights allow us, as student journalists, to practice 

what teachers like to term "workforce readiness skills," which include leadership, responsibility, 

and decision-making. Yes, it is inevitable that mistakes will be made. Nobody' s  perfect. But 

mistakes are how we learn. If we are expected to step into a job without real-life practice, the 

results will  not be up to par with those who have practiced. The more experience we have 



practicing the skills we need, the more prepared we will be to join the workforce. That would 

benefit everyone. 

I am here to ask you to vote to pass House Bill 14  7 1 .  I love to write with my full First 

Amendment rights. I really enjoy my job and my school and my newspaper. But there are some 

students in North Dakota that don't get these full rights. 

This bill may seem like a little thing. It's not groundbreaking and it won't solve the world's 

hunger problems . . .  but these rights matter to me, and to my peers-and to the readers of the 

articles I write. 

And who knows? 

Sometimes the little things are the ones that change the world. 

Sincerely, 

Faith Harron 

• 
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Testimony of Carrie Sandstrom (in absentia) 
University of North Dakota journalism student 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5 

Hello, my name is Carrie Sandstrom and I am a junior at the Un iversity of North 
Dakota double majoring in communication and international studies. During my 
short journalism career, I have worked for a variety of publ ications - serving as 
assistant editor for the Century High School newspaper and editor-in-chief of 
UND's Dakota Student newspaper. I have also had the privi lege of intern ing for 
the Bismarck Tribune during my senior year of high school and of working in the 
Grand Forks Herald 's sports department. 

At the various publications I have worked at, I have had the abil ity to learn from 
professionals in the field and from teachers and advisers who have taken it upon 
themselves to usher in the next generation of journal ists. Through these 
experiences, I have been impressed both with the requirements of the job and 
the responsibi l ity it carries with it. But for students, I have come to learn that one 
of the most important factors for tel l ing the stories we encounter is the abil ity to 
print them freely. It is because I believe in the power of the press and the 
importance of protecting it that I am pleased to stand before you and urge you to 
pass the John Wall New Voices Act. 

During my time at high school ,  as part of one of my fi rst experiences with student 
journal ism, I found myself caught up in a story. A story that ,  unl ike many I had 
covered before, was not clear cut and did not offer the instant gratification of an 
easy piece. It started when I noticed that water bottles purchased through the 
school cafeteria cost 25 cents more than their school-run vending machine 
counterparts. The price discrepancy intrigued me, and I ended up spending over 
a month hunting down the cause. After speaking with school admin istrators, 
representatives from the water bottle provider and others, I wrote a short 200-
word story outl in ing the price difference and just why students were paying more 
in the cafeteria. The piece ran in one of the last issues of the Century Star for the 
year, and when students returned to school fol lowing summer break, we were 
greeted with un iform water bottle prices throughout the school .  This small change 
- measured l iterally in cents - provided me with a priceless lesson : Student 
journalists have the power to create meaningful change in our schools. 

However, it was not unti l I began my collegiate newspaper career that I learned 
firsthand that student journalists have the power not only to impact their schools 
but the community at large, as wel l .  Unfortunately, unl ike my time at Century 
High School ,  I found col lege journal ists, at least at UNO,  face much more 
administrative pressure than I felt during my high school career. Perhaps it is 



because instead of a circulation of 1 ,500 students the "Dakota Student" reaches 
1 5,000, perhaps it is because instead of coming out once a month , the "Dakota 
Student" came out twice a week, perhaps it's al l just a fluke. Regardless, during 
my time as Editor- in-Chief of UN D's only student newspaper, I found myself 
constantly on the defensive. 

There was a period early in the fal l of 201 3 when several high-level pink sl ips 
were being handed out as quietly as possible. As one of the few means of 
holding administrators accountable for their actions, it was my obligation to 
assign and publ ish a series of articles documenting the firings. As a student and 
a student employee, I spent many long n ights worried that I wou ld be the next 
person told to pack up their desk. 

The stories we wrote were val id. They were important. And they were necessary. 
And the fact that as journalists we were afraid we would be fired or have our 
academic careers threatened for writing stories that were val id,  important and 
necessary simply because the journal ists that wrote the stories were students is 
unacceptable. 

We were lucky. The fear of being fi red can never compare to the reality of my 
peers at other schools and in  other states who have lost their jobs for doing their 
jobs. But l uck cannot replace legal protection. Not with something so important. 
Not when l ives and futures are the price of a change in fortune. Not when the 
truth and the abil ity to tel l  it is on the l ine. 

The words we write matter. 

They impact those who read them. 

They create change. 

But only if they are heard .  

The freedom of student presses should not and cannot be  contingent upon the 
moods of the administration. The stories we are tel l ing are too important. 
Students have the abil ity to create change, but you have the power to protect it. I 
urge you to do so by passing this bi l l .  



Testimony of Mary Beth Tinker to House Education Committee 
Regarding John Wall Youth Voices Act 

February 1 7, 201 5 

To Chairman Mike Nathe and the House Education Committee 

� 1 5"' 
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Thank you for your interest in student journalism and for holding this hearing. At a time 
when schools across the country are searching for ways to engage students in civic 
action, you are giving the students of North Dakota a valuable civics lesson. And , at a 
time when many citizens, including students, question whether their voices wil l  be 
heard ,  you have welcomed and encouraged the voices of young people. 

The John Wall Youth Voices Act is fine example of civic action on the part of young 
people. Students themselves identified a problem, proposed a solution, and are 
seeking a change in publ ic policy through the legislative process. I urge you to give your 
support for this bi l l  and for the students of North Dakota. 

In doing so, you wil l  g ive a vote of confidence to students l ike Peter Odney, one of the 
journalism students at the University of Jamestown who developed and championed 
this b i l l .  When I asked him why he had done that, he said that recently, as editor- in-chief 
of The Col legian, he wanted to include all opinions about the change in the school 's 
name from Jamestown College to the University of Jamestown. 

He knew that some of those opin ions might not be popular, and that some might even 
be seen as controversial , but he didn 't want to leave anyone out or censor anyone. So, 
he helped create the John Wall Youth Voices Act because "If you take away student 
voice, students don 't have any incentive to take part in the democratic process. They 
feel that they're being told , 'we don 't trust you to do what's right ."  

Peter is proud that the John Wall Youth Voices Act has gone from a smal l  kernel of an 
idea to proposed legislation ,  saying "that's kind of the whole point of democracy, isn 't 
it?" He follows updates on the bi l l  on the facebook page that he and students created . 

Peter's contribution and that of others is "kind of the whole idea of democracy." You ,  as 
policy makers, now have a chance to show students l ike Peter that you agree, and that 
you have faith in students to rise to the challenges of our democracy. 

When I was young,  I knew what it was l ike to be told not to have an opinion , not to use 
my voice, and not to take part in democracy because I was too young.  

I g rew up in Des Moines, Iowa, where I studied lessons at school ,  but also learned the 
values of my fami ly and the Methodist church where my father was a min ister. Christian 
ideals of peace, love, and brotherhood were deeply ingrained, and only became 
stronger when my family became involved with the Quakers. 
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The year I turned 1 3- 1 965- was a sad time for me as and our country. That Christmas, 
my father read bible verses and l it the yule log , but on TV we saw the horror of the 
Vietnam war. Chi ldren ran from huts and soldiers lay in body bags. In our midwestern 
community, boys not much older than my brothers were being drafted for the war. 

My siblings and a few friends decided to wear black armbands to school that Christmas 
to mourn the war dead and support a cal l  for a Christmas truce. All we knew was that 
we wanted to express our feel ings about the war. 

But when the principals heard our plan , they passed a rule against armbands, saying 
that students who wore them would be suspended. We tried to change their minds, and 
talked with the principals, the superintendent, and the school board . Some school board 
members voted in our favor, but they were outnumbered and we were suspended . 

In 1 969, the U .S .  Supreme Court had the final say. It ruled by 7-2 that students in publ ic 
schools do have free speech rights, and that students- and teachers- do not "shed their 
constitutional rights to freedom of speech or expression at the school house gate."  

It was a landmark ru l ing,  a vote of confidence in  students everywhere .  Some people 
predicted that the ru l ing would be a d isaster, that students would abuse thei r  rights and 
cause havoc in the schools. But no such thing happened . "Tinker v Des Moines 
Independent Community School District" became a precedent for student speech rights. 

After the ru l ing, I grew up and became a pediatric nurse, working with teenagers in 
schools, cl in ics and hospitals .  I learned that students do better, and are even healthier, 
when they have input into their schools and their lives. I learned that schools where 
students have a voice are schools where students succeed, and want to be. 

No wonder students are more l ikely to graduate from such schools, with thriving 
journalism programs, student councils and student government. In such schools, 
students feel valued as members of their schools and the larger community. 

With the John Walls New voices Act, you have a chance to send a vote of confidence to 
students, students l ike Faith Harron, a reporter for the Century Star at Century High 
School in Bismarck. Faith writes about mi l itary fami l ies, but also wrote about this bi l l  for 
the Bismarck Tribune. 

She said the bi l l  is important because "Journalism helps us be informed and connected 
in the world . . .  to tell important stories that otherwise people might not hear."  

Show Faith that her voice matters. Students are the future ,  but they are also the 
present, and they are asking for your support. 

Thank you , 
Mary Beth Tinker 
Washington DC 
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H on ora ble Alex Looysen 

State Representative 

P .O.  Box 1305 
Jam estown, ND 58401 

Dear Representative Looysen :  

You r  Success. 
Our Tradition. 

Office of the President 
6080 College Lane 
Jamestown, ND 
58405 

701-252-3467 ext. 5551 ?/ / e, { /� 
701-253-4494 Fax 
www.uj.edu 

I u n dersta nd that the John Wal l  New Voices Act wi l l  be discussed before the Senate Ed ucation 

Comm ittee this week. I am sorry that I cannot be in  atten dance due to a n  o ut-of-town comm itment, but 

I hope that you can convey, on my beha lf, my support for the Bi l l .  Those of us i n  the fie ld of education 

m ust hold high expectations for our students, and at the U n iversity of J a m estown character-based 

ed ucation is a top priority. When our students researched and d eveloped the l a nguage for this Bj.I, I 
was impressed by their  seriousness of purpose. Freedom of the press is a fu n d a m e ntal  right, and 

stu d ents should be entitled to express their  legitim ate views without fea r  of  censorsh i p .  

T h e  B i l l  d oes provide l a nguage t h a t  protects aga i nst hate speech a n d  other forms o f  i rresponsible 

behavior. That is a n  i m porta n t  protection.  I have felt that providing a n  ed ucation in  the field of 

journa l ism - where stu d ents are preparing for the real  worl d - requires freedom of expression in  the 

pol icies of the U n i versity's m ed ia .  H ow else are these young journ a l ists to prepare themselves for the 

responsibi l it ies of the press in  later l ife if they do not begin in  col lege? We have a U n iversity motto of 

"l ight a n d  truth"; it is n ot possib le for me as President to th ink  that I, a n d  I a lone, know the truth that is 

fit to print. Even if we d is l ike or disagree with students' opinions, we m ust sta n d  i n  d efense of their 

rights to freedom of the press in  schools. 

I ask that you add my support to the chorus behind this im portant b i l l .  

S i ncerely, 

Robert S. Badal ,  President 

U n iversity of J a m estown 

RSB:ek 



Joe Hegland 
Curriculum and Professional Dc,·dopmcnl 

March 1 2, 20 1 5  

Steve Listopad 
Assistant Professor 

J amesto111n Pu6[ic Sclioo{s 
ROBERT LECH, SUPERINTENDENT 

207 Second Avenue Southeast 

Jamestown, North Dakota 5840 l 
(70 1 ) 252- 1 950 Fax (70 1 ) 25 1 -20 1 1 

Student Media Director, VCSU 
1 0 1  College St. SW 
Valley City, ND 58072 

Dear Mr. Listopad: 

SALLY OST 
Business Ma11agt..1· 
Humm1 R.:sourccs Director 

Thank you for your presentation to the School Board on March 2, 20 1 5, wherein you asked the Board to 
fficially support HB 1 47 1 ,  the John Wall New Voices Act. Please note at the March 2, 201 5 meeting, 
e School Board members voted unanimously to support the bill . 

Sincerely, 

Robert Lech 
Superintendent 

The mission of'lhc Jamestown Public School is Lcurning For Al l  

Th.: Jamestown Public School District do.:s not  discrimi11;1tc on the basis ol 'racc. color. nntional origin. iigc. scx,  or handic.ip in i ts  employment 
pc>I ic ics/pracliccs. 



M a rch 10, 2015 

Susan Skalicky 

Century Journa l ism Advisor 

Legacy Journalism Advisor 

Dear Ms. Ska l icky: 

Bism a rc k  Publ ic  Schools 
806 North Washington Street 

Bismarck, North Dakota 58501 
(70 1 )  323-4000 

Fax: (70 1 )  323-4001 
www. blsma rckschools. org 

TAMARA J. USELMAN 
SUPERINTENDENT 

DR. FRAN A. RODENBURG 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

DR. BENJAMIN J. JOHNSON 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

SECONDARY SCHOOLS 

DARIN M. SCHERR, P.E. 
BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS MANAGER 

LISA J. KUDELKA 
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER 

Tha nk you for your presentation to the School Board on February 23, 2015, wherein you asked the 

Board to official ly support H B  1471, the John Wall  New Voices Act. Please note at the March 9, 2015 
meeting, the School Board members present, four of five, voted unanimously to suppo rt the bill .  

Sincerely yours, 



Testimony of Emily Chadwick (in absentia) 
West Fargo Public Schools journalism student 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wal l New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5  

The past three years I have had the amazing opportunity to be a part of West 
Fargo High School 's journalism program through which I have been able to 
flourish and openly express myself in the environment. The program has 
provided me with the ski l ls that are necessary to be a professional journalist .  I 
have been able to take on the responsibi l ity to write and report about sensitive 
topics without the worry of administrative disapproval , because my school is not 
subject to prior review the opportunities for our news staff are end less. This has 
caused us to develop a state winning newspaper along with being nationally 
recognized . With this said I want the same opportunities for the other staffs in 
North Dakota. 

I believe that if this bi l l  is passed schools wil l have the opportun ity to expand their 
journalistic views in order to properly train students in real world journal ism. As a 
student journal ist we want nothing more than to be treated professionally but if 
we are censored it becomes harder to report the stories that need to be told,  thus 
discouraging our duties as reporters. 

As a student it should be our right to know what is going on in our school and 
community. We are the future generation of this state, we should know what is 
going on around us and our voices should be heard . 



Testimony of Logan Ahern (in absentia) 
West Fargo Public Schools journalism student 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5 

First and foremost, I am a journal ist who has a strong passion in reporting the 
most relevant news and information to the community. This journalist drive 
influenced me to apply for the Al Neuharth Free Spirit Scholarship to learn from 
professionals and better myself by hearing the perspectives of students from 
across the nation . 

I was eventually awarded the scholarship and on my trip to Washington D.C. ,  I 
was able to interact with students and to my surprise, I learned that each had 
dealt with issues regarding the fi rst amendment in each of their schools. Student 
journalists were inh ibited in their creativity and passion because of their fi rst 
amendment rights taken away from them by the school .  I heard stories of 
students having their stories stripped from their publications only because their 
administration believed it reflected badly on themselves. 

In my publ ication at West Fargo High School, the Packer newspaper, we are 
completely self-funded so we do not have to go under any prior review from our 
administration. This g ives us the abil ity to ethical ly report any events going on in 
our school respectfu lly del ivering the most current and accurate news to our 
community. Without th is benefit we may not have had the opportunity to report on 
the firing of a football coach or the freedom of expression being l imited in music 
departments. 

I am a strong bel iever in First Amendment rights and our generation cannot 
afford to be without them. As a Free Spirit alumni I have learned the importance 
of the freedom of speech , freedom of the press, freedom of rel igion, freedom of 
petition and freedom of assembly. These rights have allowed student journalists 
in the publ ications I am involved in and all over the country fight to never take no 
for an answer. 



Testimony of Kacey Peterson (in absentia) 
Bismarck Public Schools journalism student 
North Dakota Senate Education Committee 

HB 1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 
March 1 8, 201 5  

My name is Kacey Peterson and I am the current Editor of the Century Star, the 
monthly newsmagazine at Century High School .  I oversee the magazine staff 
from the day we brainstorm story ideas to the day we pass it on to our readers. 
Some months run smoothly and other months we face tough decisions about our 
content. 

Our main focus this year has been community engagement. Our goal with 
community engagement is to start and maintain a conversation with the CHS 
student body and our community. In order for th is conversation to be beneficial to 
both sides, we need to decide what our readers need to know. 

Sometimes the decision about what to publ ish can be difficult. In that case, we 
start by consulting the staff and col lecting ideas. Next, we consult our adviser. 
Advice from our adviser usually is a reminder of our First Amendment rights and 
of the responsibi l ity we carry to uphold those rights. That responsibil ity plays a 
significant role in how we decide whether or not to publish certain stories. If we 
were a censored magazine, this advice may sound l ike, "Stay within the 
guidel ines and don't upset anyone." We may not be able to publish stories about 
such th ings as teen pregnancy, eating disorders, or racism- all topics that have 
an impact on our student body. 

When we, the Century Star staff, make our own decisions, it motivates us to do 
the most professional job possible. If our adviser, or an admin istrator, were to 
make all the decisions about what we could or could not print, we wou ld only be 
motivated by a grade and we wouldn't be able to feel the same sense of pride we 
do now. Instead , we have the privilege of " Inspiring , Ign it ing , and Impacting" our 
peers at Century and the community with news we bel ieve they need to hear. 

Thank you for your consideration of the John Wal l  New Voices Act. 



CHUCK KLOSTERMAN 
March 1 7, 20 1 5  

C huck Klosterman 
88 Wyckoff St. 
Apt. 3-F 

B rooklyn, NY 1 1 20 1 

cj klosterman@gmail .com 

Members of the Senate: 

My name is Chuck Klosterman. I am a 1 990 graduate of Wyndmere H igh School (where I wrote for the 
school newspaper) and a 1 994 graduate of the University of North Dakota (where I was a reporter and 

editor at the Dakota Student). Since then, I have written for The Forum of Fargo-Moorhead, the Akron 
Beacon Journal, The New York Times, SPIN magazine, Esquire, GQ, The Washington Post, The Guardian, 
and ESPN. I have also published eight books and served as "The Ethicist" for The New York Times 
Magazine. 

I am writing this letter in support of the New Voices Act, a bil l  that recently passed the House 

unanimously. Passage of this bill  is important for at least two reasons. The first is self-evident: Freedom of 

the Press is an essential component to any free society, and the tenants of that principle should not be 

threatened or controlled by any institutional power. The age of the journalist is irrelevant, and it 's  
hypocritical to teach the value of Freedom of Expression within any school that does extend that policy to 

its own students. The second reason is symbolic: Expediting this bil l  into law would illustrate North 
Dakota' s  aggressive commitment to personal freedom and constitutional adherence to the rest of the nation. 

It  is my hope that the New Voices Act moves through the Senate as successfully as it traversed the House 

of Representatives. 

S incerely, 

Chuck Klosterman 

ti: 2, 1. 
�/ 1<3 / 1 5 
1-t 0 \Lfl"\ 
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Testimony of Kent State University (in absentia) 
Center for Scholastic Journalism 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 471 , The John Wal l  New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5 

The Center for Scholastic Journalism at Kent State University offers its support 
for the John Wall New Voices Act, proposed legislation intended to strengthen 
the free expression and free press rights of high school and college students in  
the state of North Dakota. 

As a national clearinghouse with information for and about student journalists and 
thei r  advisers, a research center on issues affecting scholastic media, an 
educator of journalism teachers and an advocate for student press freedom and 
the First Amendment, the Center understands the devastating impact censorship 
can have on young people's appreciation for fundamental First Amendment 
values. We believe this proposed legislation wil l  help North Dakota schools 
produce more dedicated and ethical journalists as wel l  as more engaged citizens. 

The Center for Scholastic Journalism is a project of the School of Journalismand 
Mass Communication at Kent State University in Kent, Ohio. It is supported by 
an endowment from the John S .  and James L. Knight Fou ndation. 

Mark Goodman 
Professor and Knight Chair in Scholastic Journalism 
Center for Scholastic Journal ism 
E-mail :  mgoodm1 0 @ kent.edu 
Office : 330-672-6239 

Center for Scholastic Journalism 
School of Journalism and Mass Communication 
Kent State U niversity 
201 D Franklin  Hal l  
P .  0. Box 5 1 90, 550 Hi l ltop Drive 
Kent, OH 44242-0001 
http://www.kent.edu/jmc 



Testimony of JEA Board of Directors {in absentia) 
Journalism Education Association 

North Dakota Senate Education Committee 
H B  1 47 1 , The John Wall New Voices Act 

March 1 8, 201 5 

The Journalism Education Association, the largest organization in  the country for 
journalism teachers and student media advisers, endorses the New Voices Act 
proposed by North Dakota educators for the 201 5 legislative session . Such an 
endorsement reflects our mission and beliefs, i ncluding active defense of First 
Amendment freedoms and journalistic responsibi l ities. The Act's purpose - to 
restore and preserve student expression at both the secondary and collegiate 
levels - is an integral part of learning that must go on in our schools. Allowing 
students to make content decisions and be in charge of their own media lets 
them practice critical th inking, researching, interviewing,  writing,  editing and 
creating visuals while col laborating with other staffers to produce a product for an 
audience. Students also learn how a free and responsible press can improve 
their school communities by informing, entertaining and influencing their 
audience. They model civics in action so not only the student journalists see how 
democracy works, but also those who read and view their media. The New 
Voices Act has a sound educational foundation that wil l  benefit North Dakota 
students far beyond their journalism newsrooms. 



Ji:. I 
15.0825.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for ?/2~/ /s 
Representative Looysen 

March 18, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, line 15, remove "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint of any 
school-sponsored media" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 27 with "A student enrolled in an institution under the 
supervision of the state board of higher education may commence a civil action to 
obtain damages under this section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as 
determined by a court for a violation of subsection 2. the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution, or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North Dakota:" 

Page 2, remove lines 28 and 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 26, after "6." insert "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 
guardian may commence a civil action to obtain damages under this 
section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as determined by a 
court for a violation of this section. the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution, or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North 
Dakota. 

7." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 I, 15.0825.02002 



Representing the Diocese of Fargo 
and the Diocese of Bismarck 

Christopher T. Dodson 

Executive Director and 

General Counsel 

To: Senate Education Committee 

From: Chri stopher T. Dodson , Executi ve Director 
Subject: HB 1 47 1  
Date: March 1 9 , 20 1 5  

It i s  our u nderstanding the committee was requested to amend H B  1 47 l to reinsert 

l an guage that would prohibit a private postsecondary education i n stitution from 

enacti n g  pol i c ies concern i n g  student speech .  The North Dakota Cathol ic 

Conference opposed this section of the original bi l l  for several reasons .  

First, i t  i s  broader i n  scope than the rest of the bil l .  The rest of the bi l l ,  i n  its 

origi nal and amended form , addresses the rights of student j ournal ists . The 

section of the origi nal bi l l  concern i n g  private col l eges and u n i versities extended 

to a l l  student speech and communication , whether or not the speech or 

communication was part of a journal i stic endeavor. 

Secon d ,  we bel ieve that government should not unduly interfere with the pol icies 

and practices of pri vate i nstitution s .  There are some situations , such as when the 

pri vate i n stitution accepts state funds , w hen some restrictions might be warranted . 

This  i s  not one of them . The original bil l ,  without justification , dictates to pri vate 

col lege or uni versity w hat it cannot i ncl ude in its pol i cies .  

T h i rd ,  the origi nal b i l l  had a subsection exempti ng institutions control led by a 

rel i gious organization "to the extent the appl ication of this section would not be 

consistent with the rel i gious tenets of the organi zation ." This  exemption , whi le  

wel l -i ntentioned , i s  problematic . First of  al l ,  a l l  private i n stitutions should be 

exe mpt from undue state i nterference for any reaso n ,  not j ust rel igious i n stitutions 

for rel i gious reasons .  Secondly, the provision i mpermi ssibly invites courts to 

review the "rel i gious tenets" of a rel i gious organization - something that is  

outside a secu l ar court's competence, i n  addition to being unconstitutional . 

For these reasons ,  we ask the committee to not reinsert Section 2 of the original 

bill  i nto Engrossed HB 1 47 1 .  

1 03 S .  3rd St. ,  Suite 1 0  • B ismarck, ND 58501  

(70 1 )  223-25 1 9  • 1 -888-4 1 9- 1 237 • FAX # (70 1 )  223-6075 

http://ndcatholic .org • ndcatholic @btinet.net 



15.0825.02001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Looysen 

March 13, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, remove lines 15 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 J ) 15.0825.02001 
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15.0825.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for l I J­
Representative Looysen ~ 123 ~ 

March 18, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, line 15, remove "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint of any 
school-sponsored media" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 27 with "A student enrolled in an institution under the 
supervision of the state board of higher education may commence a civil action to 
obtain damages under this section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as 
determined by a court for a violation of subsection 2, the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution, or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North Dakota." 

Page 2, remove lines 28 and 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 26, after "6." insert "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 
guardian may commence a civil action to obtain damages under this 
section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as determined by a 
court for a violation of this section, the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution, or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North 
Dakota. 

7." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 J) 15.0825.02002 
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15.0825.02001 
lltle. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Looysen 

March 13, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove 11

1 15-18.1," 

Page 2, remove lines 15 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 J ) 15.0825.02001 
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1tz 
15.0825.02002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for ' J J­
Representative Looysen '? 2q :, 

March 18, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1471 

Page 1, line 1, remove", 15-18.1," 

Page 2, line 15, remove "An institution may not authorize any prior restraint of any 
school-sponsored media" 

Page 2, replace lines 16 through 27 with "A student enrolled in an institution under the 
supervision of the state board of higher education may commence a civil action to 
obtain damages under this section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as 
determined by a court for a violation of subsection 2. the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution. or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North Dakota." 

Page 2, remove lines 28 and 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 14 

Page 4, line 16, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 22, replace "institution or state board of higher education" with "school district" 

Page 4, line 24, replace "institution" with "school" 

Page 4, line 25, after "school" insert "district" 

Page 4, line 26, after 116. 11 insert "A student enrolled in a public school or the student's parent or 

7." 

. guardian may commence a civil action to obtain damages under this 
section and appropriate injunctive or declaratory relief as determined by a 
court for a violation of this section, the first amendment to the United 
States Constitution. or section 4 of article I of the Constitution of North 
Dakota. 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 JI 15.0825.02002 




